
TRUST 
In Partnership. With Trust. 

Date: 20'" August, 2022 
To, 

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, 
P.J. Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai —400 001. 

Subject: Submission of Notice of 15** Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

Dear Sir/ Ma’am, 

We wish to inform you that the 15t" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be 
held on Monday, 12th September, 2022 at 2:00 pm at the registered office of the company 
situated at 109&110, 18! Floor, Balarama Premises, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai 400051. 

We enclose herewith notice dated 20 August, 2022 for convening the Annual General 
Meeting. 

We request you to kindly place the same on record. 

Thanking you. 

Yours faithfully, 
For Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Gitte? 

Brijmohan Bohra 
Compliance Officer 

  

TRUST INVESTMENT ADVISORS PVT. LTD. 
  

Corporate Office: 1101, Naman Centre, BKC, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400051 | Phone: +91 2? 40R4 5000 | Fax: +91 22 4084 5007, 4084 5066 

Regd. Office: 109/110, Balarama, BKC, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400051 | info@trustgroup.in | www.trustgroup.in 

  

CIN: U67190MH2006PTC162464; SEBI Portfolio Manager Reg: INP000001843; SEBI Merchant Banking Reg: INM000011120



TRUST 
In Partnership. With Trust. 

NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 15" Annual General Meeting of the members of Trust 
Investment Advisors Private Limited will be held on Monday, 12" September, 2022 at 02:00 

P.M. at the registered office of the company situated at 109/110, Balarama Premises, Bandra 
Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051 to transact the following business: 

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item no. 1- Adoption of Audited Financial Statements, for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2022 and the reports of the Boards of Directors and the Auditors: 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Audited Financial Statements, for the Financial Year ended 31" 

March, 2022, the Auditors’ Report and the Directors’ Report, as circulated to the shareholders 

and laid before the meeting, be received, considered and adopted.” 

For Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

no 

we 

Company Secretary 

  

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 20 August, 2022 
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Note: 
TRUST 
In Partnership. With Trust. 1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. 
Proxies in order to be valid must reach the registered office of the company not later than 48 hours before the date of the meeting. 

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting, 

3. Members/ Proxies/ Representatives should bring the enclosed Attendance Slip, duly filled in, for attending the Meeting. Copies of the Attendance Slips will not be distributed 
at the Meeting. 

    

4. Route Map is enclosed 

5. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are being sent to Members. 

6. Members are requested to immediately intimate any change in their address to the Company. 

ROUTE MAP 
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TRUST 
In Partnership, With Trust. 

PROXY FORM 

MGT-11 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 
CIN: U67190MH2006PTC162464 

REGD OFFICE: 109/110, 1' Floor, Balarama Premises Co-Op Soc, Village Parigkhari, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400051. 

  Name of Member (s): 
Registered Address:   
  

  

            

Email-Id: 

Folio No./Client ID: DP 
ID: 

I/We, being the member (Ss) Of ......c.cecccsceccecececesccceceseeces shares of the above named company, 
hereby appoint 
1), ccsmoveveerr eee OF ccc cette having E-mail Id: oo... eee, or 

failing him 
Qo eecccecceeeeteecteesssesssteseeens OF sisi rernsemnearcnymencesvosraeares having E-mail Id to... cccececeeees or 

failing him 
ne Of scenscwasvnssdieecenenceensnniwnnncs having E-mail Id: oo... ccc. or 
failing him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the of the AGM of the Company, to be held on Monday, 12 September, 2022 at 02:00 P.M. at 109/110, 
Balarama, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below: 

  Item No. Resolution For Against 
1 Adoption of Standalone Audited Financial Statements, for 

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 and the reports 
of the Boards of Directors and the Auditors. 

  

          
  

Signed this ...0..000... day Of... 2022 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
Signature of shareholder 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 
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TRUST 
In Partnership. With Trust. 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

AGM of the Company held on Monday, 12° September, 2022 at 02:00 P.M. at 109/110, 
Balarama, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051. 

Regd. Folio No. /DP ID Client |ID/Ben. A/C No. of shares 
held__ 

Name: 

Address: 

| certify that | am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company 
and hereby record my presence at the AGM of the Company to be held on Monday, 12% 
September, 2022 at 02:00 P.M .at 109/110, Balarama, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai-400051. 

    

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member's/Proxy’s Signature 

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 

  

“Ap 78 
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  TRUST 
In Partnership. With Trust. 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To 

The Members of 

TRUST INVESTMENT ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The Board of Directors are pleased to present their Sixteenth report of the business and 
operations of the Company together with the audited financial statements, for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2022. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION OF PROFITS: 

The Summary of the financial performance of the Company for the year under review is 
as given below: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(Amount in 
Particulars Lakhs) 

Current Year | Previous Year 
2021-2022 2020-2021 

Income from Operations 57,508.31 14,234.74 

Other Income 8.67 7.31 
Total Income 57,516.98 14,242.05 

Less : Employee Benefits Expenses 6,514.35 2,202.28 
Less : Finance Cost 6,837.20 5,867.74 
Less : Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 157.75 146.58 
Less : Other Expenses 3,845.66 1,911.37 
Less: Impairment on Financial Instruments 39.65 (113.27) 
Less: Net Loss on fair value changes on investment 333.79 - 
Total Expenses 17,728.40 10,014.71 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax & Exceptional Items 39,788.58 4,227.34 
Less : Current year Taxation 6,400.00 400.00 

Less : Deferred Tax 19.95 (244.86) 
Less : (Excess)/Short Provision for Income Tax for 639.40 - 
earlier Years 
Profit After Tax 32,729.23 4,072.20 
Other Comprehensive Income (13.97) (2.85) 
Total Comprehensive Income 32,715.25 4,069.35 

Less: Appropriation 
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 32,715.25 4,069.35         
  

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS, BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND CHANGE_IN 
NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

During the year under review, your Company has recorded Revenue from Operations of 
Rs. 57,508.31 lakhs as compared to Revenue from Operations of Rs. 14,234.74 lakhs in 

the previous year. It has also earned Other Income of Rs. 8.67 lakhs as compared to that 
of Rs. 7.31 lakhs for the corresponding previous year. 

Net profit for the year ended March 31, 2022 after making provision for taxation and 
deferred tax stands at Rs. 32,729.23 lakhs as compared to that of Rs. 4,072.20 lakhs for 

the previous year. 
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Management evaluation of COVID-19 on Performance of the Company: 

The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe, resulting in 

significant volatility in financial markets including India and a significant decrease in global 

and India’s economic activities. The spread of the coronavirus and the situation of lock- 

down across India in the period during the year ended 31% March, 2022 is considered as 

significant event. There has been no material change in the controls or processes 

followed in closing of these financial statements by the Company. 

The company has assessed the impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets 

including value of its investments as at 31% March, 2022. Given the dynamic nature of 

pandemic situation, the valuation of the company’s investment in debt securities as at 31% 

March, 2022 is subject to significant uncertainty and will be affected by the severity and 

duration of the outbreak. In the event the impact is prolonged or more severe than 

anticipated, this will have a corresponding impact on carrying value of the investments. 

The company believes that it has taken into account all the possible impacts of known 

events arising out of COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of financial statements. 

However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 pandemic is a continuing process given its 

nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor for any material changes to 

future economic conditions. 

During the year under review, there were no changes in Company's nature of business. 

SHARE CAPITAL: 

e The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 750 lakhs divided into 75,00,000 

Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each. There is no change in the Authorized 

Share Capital of the Company during the year under review. 

e The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 650 lakhs divided in to 65,00,000 

Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each. There is no change in the Paid-up Share 

Capital of the Company during the year under review. 

e The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, 

voting or otherwise during the year under review. 

e The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares to its directors or employees. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

During the year under review, the Company has transferred Rs. 32,715.25 lakhs to 

Reserves and Surplus. 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

In pursuance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors meet 

periodically to monitor the management of the Company. 

During the financial year 2021-2022, the Board of Directors of the Company met 15 times, 

the details of which is summarized below: 

  

  

  

  

Sr. No. Serial Number.of Board Meeting Date of Meeting 

1 01/2021-22 15/05/2021 

2 02/2021-22 09/07/2021 

3 03/2021-22 31/07/2021          



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

4 04/2021-22 18/08/2021 

5 05/2021-22 21/09/2021 

6 06/2021-22 24/09/2021 

7 07/2021-22 11/11/2021 

8 08/2021-22 17/11/2021 

9 09/2021-22 29/11/2021 

10 10/2021-22 21/12/2021 

11 11/2021-22 08/02/2022 

12 12/2021-22 14/02/2022 

13 13/2021-22 11/03/2022 

14 14/2021-22 22/03/2022 

15 15/2021-22 30/03/2022         
Number of Board Meeting Attended by each Director: 
  

  

  

| Sr. No. Name of Director Number of Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mrs. Nipa Sheth 15 

2 Mrs. Nisha Mehta 15           
DETAILS OF HOLDING & SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 
  

The Company is the subsidiary of Trust Capital Services (India) Private Limited, which 
holds 64,90,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, constituting 99.85% of the shareholding of 

the Company. 

During the year under review, the Company had the following subsidiary companies: 

a) Sankhya Financial Services Private Limited (Indian subsidiary) 

This subsidiary company has earned net profit (net of provision for taxation and 
deferred tax) of Rs.836.57 lakhs as compared to that of Rs. 701.82 lakhs in the 
previous year. 

Chanakya Capital Partners (Mauritius subsidiary) 

The Company has earned net profit (net of provision for taxation and deferred tax) of 
USD 79,881,640 for the financial year ended on 31%! December, 2021, as compared to 
profit earned of USD 2,426,882 in in the previous year. 

Trust Asset Management Private Limited (Indian subsidiary) 

This company has net loss (net of provision for taxation and deferred tax) of Rs. 
786.02 lakhs as compared to that of loss of Rs. 315.52 lakhs in the previous year. 

Trust AMC Trustee Private Limited (Indian subsidiary) 

This subsidiary company has net loss (net of provision for taxation and deferred tax) of 
Rs. 10.99 lakhs as compared to that of loss of Rs. 7.65 lakhs in the previous year.



10. 

e) Relativity Investment Advisors LLP 

Relativity Investment Advisors LLP was incorporated on February 19, 2019. The LLP 
has incurred net loss of Rs. 244.01 lakhs as compared to that of loss of Rs. 0.12 lakhs 
in the previous year. 

The Board of Directors has reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary companies. In 
accordance with the provisions of Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts and Audit) Rules, 
2014 (as amended) read with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the holding 
company of your Company i.e. Trust Capital Services (India) Private Limited shall be 
preparing consolidated financial statements of all its subsidiaries (including your 
Company and its step down subsidiaries) and accordingly the Company has not prepared 
its consolidated financial statements. 

Statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of our subsidiaries in 
the prescribed format AOC-1 is appended as Annexure | to the Board’s report. 

DISCLOSURE ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION/PURCHASE SCHEME: 

During the year under review, the Company did not have any Employee Stock Option 
Plan / Stock Purchase Scheme. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Company has carried out several improvements to its integrated enterprise risk 
management, internal controls management and assurance frameworks and processes, 
so as to drive common integrated risks and optimal risk mitigation responses and efficient 
management of internal control and assurance activities. 

The Board of your Company has full awareness and assessment in respect of the 
business risk apart from the unforeseen natural calamities. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

Your Company has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy with an objective 
to “give back to the society”. In line with this approach “Trust Investment” has under taken 
social activities which are described in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 through 
donations and active participation of directors of the company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the related Rules, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee of the 
Board of Directors has been formed consisting of the following members namely Mrs. 
Nipa Sheth & Mrs. Nisha Mehta, to recommend the policy on Corporate Social 
Responsibility and monitor its implementation. 

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure-II to this Report. 

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM: 

The Company has implemented a whistle blower policy pursuant to which whistle blowers 
can raise concern in relation to the matters covered under the policy. Protected 
disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through an e-mail to the concerned person 
and also have direct access to the Chairman, in exceptional cases. 

 



41. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15, 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 
186: 

The information regarding loans, guarantees or investments covered under the provisions 
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are detailed in notes of the Financial 

Statements. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial 
Year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length 
basis. 

The details of transactions entered into with the Related Parties referred to in sub-section 
(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are annexed as Annexure III (in the Form 
AOC-2) to this Report. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part of this Report as 
Annexure IV. 

DIVIDEND: 

With a view to conserve its resources, your Board of Directors do not recommend 

payment of any dividend in respect of the financial year 2021-22. 

DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits from the public, during the 
financial year ended 31% March, 2022. 

16. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

17. 

During the year under consideration, there was no change in the composition of Board of 
Directors of the Company. 

None of the Board of Directors holds directorships in more than 10 public companies. 

The provisions of Section 149(4) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 for having an 

independent director on the Board of Directors do not apply to the Company. Accordingly, 
the requirement under Section 134(3)(d) of the Act with respect to furnishing statement on 
declaration given by independent director(s) does not apply to the Company. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT : 

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 
confirm that: 

  

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;



18. 

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate on operating effectively. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/s. Sanjay Patel & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 116169W), Mumbai, were 
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the company upto FY 2022-23, to hold office upto 
the date of AGM to be held in the calendar year 2023, at such remuneration as may be 
agreed between the Board and Statutory Auditors. 

The said appointment of the Statutory Auditors was required to be ratified at every Annual 
General Meeting. However, pursuant to the amendment in the proviso to Section 139 
which has been made effective on May 07, 2018, the requirement of ratification of 
appointment of Statutory Auditors at every Annual General Meeting has been omitted. In 
view of such omission of proviso, agenda item relating to ratification of Statutory Auditors 
is not included in the Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to the same, 
M/s. Sanjay Patel & Associates, continues to hold the office of Statutory Auditors for the 
FY 2022-23. 

19. ADOPTION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS): 

20. 

21. 

22. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind As) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the Act’) and other relevant 
provisions of the Act, as amended from time to time. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS: 
  

During the year under review, there were no material changes which may affect the 
financial position of the Company, which has occurred during the end of the financial year 
of the Company. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by 
any regulators / courts / tribunals, which may impact the going concern status and the 
Company's operations in future. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT: 

Your Company is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of every women 
working in / with the Company and has zero tolerance towards any actions which may fall 
under the ambit of sexual harassment at work place. The Company has not received any 
complaint related thereto during the year under review.



23. 

24. 

25. 

26. 

Further, as per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, your 

Company has constituted internal complaints committee. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, _ FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO: 

The information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to the matters relating 

to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo is 

submitted in the Annexure — V to this Report. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as 

amended, the Company has appointed M/s. D.G Prajapati & Associates, Company 

Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 

Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remarks or disclaimer and is annexed herewith as Annexure — VI to this Directors’ 

Report. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

Your company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

Your Directors take the opportunity to express our deep sense of gratitude to all users, 

vendors, Government and non-governmental agencies and bankers for their continued 

support in Company’s growth and look forward to their continued support in the future. 

Your Directors would also like to express their gratitude to the shareholders for reposing 

unstinted trust and confidence in the management of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of yaa 
Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

  

     Nipa Sheth 
Director 

Nisha Mehta 

Director 

  

DIN: 00081064 DIN: 00081102 Date: 27" July, 2022 

 



Annexure | 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

SN Particulars Details (amounts in lakhs) 
1 Name of the subsidiary Sankhya Financial Services 

Private Limited 
2 | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 18 April 2021 — 318t March 

different from the holding company’s reporting period | 2022 
3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last N.A. 

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries 

4 __| Share capital (Equity Share Capital) 3,200.00 
5 Reserves & surplus 7,442.63 
6 | Total Assets 32,920.85 
7__| Total Liabilities 32,920.85 
8 Investments 16,132.90 

9 __| Turnover 3,334.13 
10 | Profit before taxation 1017.30 
11__| Provision for taxation 180.73 
12__| Profit after taxation 836.57 
13._| Proposed Dividend - 
14 | % of shareholding (Equity Shares) 93.75% 

SN Particulars Details 

1 Name of the subsidiary Chanakya Capital Partners 

2 | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 1SJanuary 2021 — 
different from the holding company’s reporting 31'December 2021 
period 

3 | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the USD 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries 

4 __| Share capital 60,001 
5 __| Reserves & surplus 77,253,526 
6 | Total Assets 80,198,156 
7 | Total Liabilities 80,198,156 
8 | Investments 1,100 
9 | Turnover 83,161,549 
10 | Profit before taxation 82,352,080 
11 | Provision for taxation 2,470,440 
12 | Profit after taxation 79,881,640 
13__| Proposed Dividend 21,30,000 
14 | % of shareholding 100%     
  

  
 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

  

  

  

  

          

    

  

   

SN Particulars Details (amounts in lakhs.) 

1 | Name of the subsidiary Trust Asset Management 
Private Limited 

2 | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if | 18' April 2021 - 318 March 
different from the holding company’s reporting period | 2022 

3 | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last NA 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries 

4 | Share capital 8,500.00 

5 | Reserves & surplus (2,029.76) 

6 | Total Assets 6,828.49 

7 | Total Liabilities 6,828.49 
8 | Investments 5,791.95 

9 | Turnover 87.47 

10 | Profit/Loss before taxation (667.60) 

11 | Provision for taxation (118.05) 

12 | Profit/Loss after taxation (785.65) 

13 | Proposed Dividend - 

14 | % of shareholding 99.99% 

SN Particulars Details (amounts in lakhs) 

4 Name of the subsidiary Trust AMC Trustee Private 
Limited 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 1st Apri! 2021 — 318! March 
different from the holding company’s reporting period 2022 

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last NA 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries 

4 Share capital 30.00 

5 Reserves & surplus (27.71) 

6 Total Assets 5.77 

7 Total Liabilities 5.77 

8 Investments - 

9 Turnover 12.00 

10 Profit/Loss before taxation (10.99) 

11 Provision for taxation - 

12 Profit/Loss after taxation (10.99) 

13 Proposed Dividend - 

14 | % of shareholding 99.99% 

SI. Particulars Details (amounts in 

No. lakhs) 

4 Name of the subsidiary Relativity Investment 
Advisors LLP 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different | 18 April 2021 - 31% 
from the holding company’s reporting period March 2022 

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date NA 

of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 

subsidiaries 

4 Partners Capital (Fixed) 1.00 

ont Ady;      oa 
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5 Partners Capital (Current) 5.33 

6 Reserves & surplus Nil 

7 Total Assets 14.63 

8 Total Liabilities 14.63 

9 Investments Nil 

10 | Turnover Nil 

11 | Profit/Loss before taxation (244.01) 

12 | Provision for taxation Nil 

13 Profit/Loss after taxation (244.01) 

14 | Proposed Dividend Nil 

15 % of shareholding (Holding of Trust Investment Advisors 

Private Limited)* 99.99% 

*Trust Capital Services (India) Private Limited holds 

99.85% of the paid-up share capital of Trust Investment 

Advisors Private Limited 
  

For and on behalf of the Board of 

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

  

Directo 

DIN: 80081064 DIN: 00081102 

hme (sons 8 Zé ey 
Nipa She Nisha Mehta 

Director 

  

 



Annexure II 
REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT 

Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the CSR policy and projects or programs. 

Promoting education, disaster management and providing relief, promoting preventive 
healthcare, eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition, making available safe drinking water, 
sanitation facilities, environmental sustainability, maintaining ecological balance, 
conservation of natural resources, promotion of rural sports and establishment of old age 
homes. 

The CSR Policy adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendations 
of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee is as under: 

  

  

    

  

SI. Name of Designation/ Number of Number of meetings 
No Director Nature of meetings of CSR of CSR Committee 

Directorship Committee held attended during the 
during the year year 

1 Nipa U. Sheth Non-Executive 4 1 
Director 

2 Nisha S. Mehta Non-Executive 1 1 
Director         
  

. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: NA 

. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule 
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 
applicable (attach the report): NA 

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set 
off for the financial year, if any: 

  

  

  
  

Sr. Financial Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be setoff for 
No Year from preceding financial the financial year, if any (in Rs) 

years (in Rs) 
1 Year under 150.00 96.00 

review 
(FY 2021-22) 

Balance available for 61.90 
set-off (for next year)     
  

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years as per Section 135(5): Rs. 
4,785.15 lakhs. 

  

  

 



7. (a). Prescribed CSR Expenditure [two per cent of average net profit of the Company as per 
the Section 135(5)]: Rs. 96.00 lakhs. 

(b). Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial year, if any: Nil 

(c). Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year: Rs.96.00 lakhs. 

(d). Total CSR Obligations (7a+7b+7c) for the Financial Year: Rs. 96.00 lakhs. 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

  

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
  

Spent for the 
Financial Year. (in 
Lakhs) 

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 
as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5). 
  

        

Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of Transfer | 
Transfer the Fund 

7.90 Nil NA NA Nil NA         
  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against Ongoing Projects for the Financial Years: 

  

  

              
    
  

  

  

    

  
  

    
  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
Sl. | Name = of | Item from | Local Area Location of the | Project Duration | Amount 
No. | Project the list of | (Yes/No) Project allocated 

activities in for the 
Schedule Project (in 
VII to the Rs.) 
Act. 

State | District 
NA 

8 9 10 11 
Amount spent in the | Amount Mode of | Mode of Implementation - 
Current Financial | transferred to Unspent | Implementation- | Through Implementing 
Year (in Rs.) CSR Account for the | Direct (Yes/No). | Agency 

project as per Section Name CSR 
135(6) (in Rs.). Registration 

Number 
NA   
  

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than Ongoing Projects for the Financial Years: 

  

  

      
  

      

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
SI. | Name © of | Item Loca | Location of | Amount | Mode | Mode of 
No | Project from I the Project Spent of Implementation - 

the list | Area for the | Imple | Through 
of (Yes Project | mentat | Implementing 
activiti | / No) (in ion - Agency 
es in State | Distri | Lakhs) Direct | Name CSR 
Sched ct (Yes / Registrati 
ule VII No). on 
tothe Number     

  

      
  

  

 



  

  

Act. 

1 For (i) No NA NA 7.90 No Rama CSROO00 
Purchase Krishna 6101 

of Bio- Mission, 
chemistry New 
Analyzer Delhi 
EM 200 
Machines                         

The total CSR obligations of the Company was Rs.96.00 lakhs for the financial year 2020-21 
which the company have taken set off against the excess CSR amount of Rs. 150.00 lakhs 
paid during the FY 2020-21, towards the promotion of education and related activities on 
behalf of the Company, through Welspun Foundation for Health & Knowledge (Implementing 
Agency) having CSR Registration Number: CSR00001502. Accordingly, the remaining excess 
amount of Rs. 54.00 Lakh that was spent by the Company towards the CSR activities, 
alongwith the amount of Rs. 7.90 Lakhs that was spent by Company during the financial year 
2021-22 (aggregating to Rs. 61.90 Lakhs) shall be eligible to be carried forwards and the 
Company shall be eligible to adjust the same against its future CSR obligations. 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 7.90 Lakhs 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

  

  

                

[ Sr. No Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) 
i Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 96.00 

section 135(5) (FY 2020-21) 

ii Total Unspent amount of previous year Nil 
iii Total amount spent for the Financial Year 7.90 
iv Excess amount spent for the financial year [(iii)-(i)] 150.00 

Vv Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 

vi Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 61.90 

{(iii)-(iv)] 

9. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the Preceding three Financial Year: 

Sr. | Preceding | Amount Amount Ameunt transferred to any | Amount 
No | Financial | transferred to | spent fund specified under Schedule | remaining 

Year Unspent CSR | in the Vil as per section 135(6), if to be spent 
Account reporting | any. in 
under section | Financial succeeding 
135 (6) Year financial 
(in Rs.) (in Rs). Name of |Amount| Date of| years (Rs 

| the Fund | (in Rs.) | Transfer | in Lakhs.) 
Nil       

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NA 

(a). Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

 



(b). Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c). Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc. 

(d). Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset). 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per section 135(5): NA 

For and on behalf of the Board of 

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

We [met 
Nipa Sheth Nisha Mehta == 
Director Director Place: Mumbai 

DIN‘ 00081064 DIN: 00081102 Date: 27 July, 2022 

 



Annexure- Ili 

FORM NO. AOC-2 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL 

  

' Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 
  

| Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
  

  

| transactions including the value, if any 

1 

2 - 

3 | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions 
4 | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

  

on
] _ Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any 

        
Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

  

| Name(s) of the related party TrustPlutus Wealth (India) Private 
Limited 
  

Nature of relationship Company under same management 
  

1 

4. 
[2 Nature 

3 | Duration of the contracts / 
_ arrangements / transactions 

Professional Fees Received & Paid 
Brokerage/Commission Paid 
Investment in Equity Shares 
Investment in Compulsorily 
Convertible Debentures 

  

| 

| 
4 | Duration of the contracts / 

_ arrangements / transactions 
NA 

  

5 Salient terms of the contracts or 
| arrangements or transactions including 
_ the value, if any 

| 

| 
| 

| 

Professional Fees Received: Rs. 2.23 
lakhs 
Professional Fee Paid: Rs. 546.09 
lakhs 

Brokerage/Commission Paid: Rs. 0.11 
lakhs 
Investment in Equity Share: Rs. 
1867.80 lakhs 
Investment in Compulsorily 
Convertible Debentures: Rs. 3878.03 
lakhs 

  

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any NA 
  

  7, Amount paid as advances, if any NA 
  

  

1 | Name(s) of the related party Chanakya Corporate Services Private 
limited. 

    2__ Nature of relationship   Company under same management 
  

  

 



  

  

  

[3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / PMS Fees Received 

| | transactions Purchase of Debentures/Bonds 

= Sale of Debentures/ Bonds 

4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 

_arrangements / transactions 

5 Salient terms of the contracts or PMS Fees Received- Rs. 8.32 lakhs 

arrangements or transactions including 
_ the value, if any 

Sale of Securities: Rs. 19,260.63 

lakhs 
Purchase of Securities: Rs.11,707.67 

lakhs 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 

| 7 Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

(1 | Name(s) of the related party Nimit Tanna 
2 | Nature of relationship Associate 

3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / PMS Fees 

| transactions Professional Fees Income 

|| Remuneration 

4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 
arrangements / transactions 
  

  

      
  

  

    

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

      arrangements / transactions   
5 Salient terms of the contracts or PMS Fees (Income) Rs. 27.02 lakhs 

"arrangements or transactions including | Professional Fees Income: Rs. 0.51 

the value, If any lakhs 
/ Remuneration: Rs. 692.71 lakhs 

|6 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 
| 7_| Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1 Name(s) of the related party Utpal Sheth 

2 Nature of relationship Relative of Director 
3 Nature of contracts / arrangements / PMS Fees 

transactions Professional fees income 

4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 
arrangements / transactions 

5 | Salient terms of the contracts or PMS Fees (Income): Rs.15.77 lakhs 

| arrangements or transactions including | Professional fees income: Rs.2.59 

the value, if any lakhs 
6 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any _| NA 

7 Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1 | Name(s) of the related party Sankhya Financial Services Private 

Limited 

2 Nature of relationship Subsidiary Company 

3 Nature of contracts / arrangements / Purchase of Bonds/ Debentures 

| transactions Sale of Bonds/ Debentures 
Preference Shares Dividend 
Fees Expenses 
Interest on NCD received 

4 | Duration of the contracts / NA   
  

  

\Y 
\ 

\



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

5 | Salient terms of the contracts or Purchase of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 
arrangements or transactions including | 34,215.41 lakhs 
the value, if any Sale of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 

15,903.58 lakhs 
Preference Shares Dividend: Rs. 
25.00 lakhs 
Interest on NCD received: Rs. 3.80 
lakhs 
Fees Expenses: Rs. 550.00 lakhs 

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, ifany | NA 
7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1 | Name(s) of the related party Trust Financial Consultancy Services 
Private limited 

2_| Nature of relationship Company under same management 

3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Brokerage paid 
transactions Purchase of Bonds/ Debentures 

Sale of Bonds/ Debentures 
4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 

arrangements / transactions 

5 | Salient terms of the contracts or Brokerage paid: Rs. 19.17 lakhs 
arrangements or transactions including | Purchase of Securities: Rs. 4,621.94 
the value, if any lakhs 

Sale of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 
7,253.15 lakhs 

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, ifany | NA 
7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1 | Name(s) of the related party Trust Capital services (India) Private 
Limited 

2_| Nature of relationship Holding Company 

3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Purchase of Bonds/ Debentures 
transactions Sale of Bonds/ Debentures 

Corporate Guarantee 

4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 

arrangements / transactions 
5 | Salient terms of the contracts or Purchase of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 

arrangements or transactions including | 9,45,364.63 lakhs 

the value, if any Sale of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 
10,23,894.45 lakhs 
Corporate Guarantee: Rs. 9,000 lakhs 

6 _| Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 
7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

Name(s) of the related party Trust Asset Management Private 
1 Limited 

2_| Nature of relationship Subsidiary Company 
3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Investment in equity shares 

transactions Sale of Bonds/ Debentures 
4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 

arrangements / transactions 

5 | Salient terms of the contracts or 
  

Investment in equity shares: Rs. 1,500  



  

arrangements or transactions including 
the value, if any 

lakhs 

Sale of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 

3,788.61 lakhs 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 
7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1_| Name(s) of the related party Nipa Sheth 
2_| Nature of relationship Director 
3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Professional fees income | 

transactions Sale of Bonds/ Debentures 
4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 

arrangements / transactions 
5 | Salient terms of the contracts or Professional fees income: Rs.10.10 

arrangements or transactions including | lakhs 
the value, if any Sale of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 1.73 

lakhs 
6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 
7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

Name(s) of the related party Chanakya Capital Partners 
1 
2_| Nature of relationship Subsidiary Company 
3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Dividend Income 

transactions 
4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 

arrangements / transactions 

5 | Salient terms of the contracts or Dividend Income: Rs. 46,032.71 lakhs 
arrangements or transactions including 
the value, if any 

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 
7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1_| Name(s) of the related party Relativity Investment Advisors LLP 

2_| Nature of relationship Firm under same Management 
3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Share of Profit/Loss from LLP 

transactions Investment 
Current Account Contribution in LLP 

4 | Duration of the contracts / NA 
arrangements / transactions 

5 | Salient terms of the contracts or Share of Profit/Loss from LLP 
arrangements or transactions including | Investment: (243.87) lakhs 
the value, if any Current Account Contribution in LLP: 

Rs. 249.60 lakhs 
6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any | NA 

7_| Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

1 | Name(s) of the related party Trust Securities Services Private 
Limited 

2_| Nature of relationship Company under same Management 

3 | Nature of contracts / arrangements / Purchase of Bonds/ Debentures 
transactions Sale of Bonds/ Debentures 

4_| Duration of the contracts / NA     
  

  
 



  

| arrangements or transactions including | 110.42 lakhs 

| the value, if any Sale of Bonds/ Debentures: Rs. 

| 10,574.00 lakhs 
  

6 | Date(s) of approval by the Board, ifany | NA 
        7 | Amount paid as advances, if any NA   
  

For and on behalf of the Board of fig um 
Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited ff ay \a\ 

  

  

Nipa Sh Nisha Mehta 

Dir, r Director Place: Mumbai 

DIN* 00081064 DIN: 00081102 Date: 27" July, 2022



Annexure — V 

PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, 
READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART 

OF THE REPORT 

  

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

  

1. | the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy The Company is — utilizing 
electricity optimally. 

  

2. | the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate | NIL 
sources of energy 
  

3. | the capital investment on energy conservation | NIL 
equipments     
  

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

  

1 the efforts made towards technology absorption; NIL 
  

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost | NIL 
reduction, product development or import substitution 
  

3 in case of imported technology (imported during the last | NIL 
three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 

  

  

  

  

      
year)- 
A | the details of technology imported; NIL 
B_| the year of import NIL 

C_| whether the technology been fully absorbed NIL 
D | if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has | NIL 

not taken place, and the reasons thereof 
4 the expenditure incurred on Research and | NIL 

Development.   
  

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

    There were No Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo during the year. 

  

For and on behalf of the Board of : 
Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited from Ady» 

Nipa Sheth Nisha Mehta 
Director Director Place: Mumbai 
DIN: 00081064 DIN: 00081102 Date: 27" July, 2022 

 



D.G. PRAJAPATI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

302, S. B. Bhavan, Rai Dongri, Carter Road No-5, Borivali (E), Mumbai- 400066, Tel: 28613629 

dgprajapati@gmail.com 

Form No.MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Financial year ended 31:tMarch, 2022 

{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the 

Companies(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

TRUST INVESTMENT ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

109 & 110, First Floor, Balarama Premises Co- Op Soc., 

Village Parigkhari, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), 

Mumbai 400 051 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

(hereinafter called the company)having CIN U67190MH2006PTC162464. Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited’s books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the 

information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the 

statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the 

provisions of: 

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; -The Company has not 

complied with Section 90 related to Significant Beneficial Ownership. 

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; : 

Not Applicable to the Company 

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; - Not Applicable to the Company 

 



D.G. PRAJAPATI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

302, S. B. Bhavan, Rai Dongri, Carter Road No-5, Borivali (E), Mumbai- 400066, Tel: 28613629 

dgprajapati@gmail.com 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations,2009; - 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999; - Not Applicable to the 
Company; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- 
ConvertibleSecurities) Regulations, 2021; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; - Not 

Applicable to the Company; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; - Not Applicable to the Company; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

- No Buyback was done during the year, hence Not Applicable; 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations 2015; 

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992; 

(k)Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 2020; 

6) The following laws, regulations, directions, orders, applicable specifically to the 
Company: 

i. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
ii. Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2016. 

iii, Master Circular- Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015. 

7) FIMMDA Operational Guidelines for Commercial Paper Effective from 16th March 2020 

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and 
mechanism framed by the Company and on examination of the documents and records in test 
check basis. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 



D.G. PRAJAPATI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

302, 5. B. Bhavan, Rai Dongri, Carter Road No-5, Borivali (E), Mumbai- 400066, Tel: 28613629 

dgprajapati@gmail.com 

During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, the Company has complied with the 

applicable clauses of Secretarial Standard (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India and it was noted that the Company has complied with the same to the extent 

possible. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above. 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors:-provisions related to appointment of Independent 

Directors is not applicable to the Company. There was no change in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate onlinenotice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 

recorded as part of the minutes. We did not find any dissenting director’s views in the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company issued and allotted 12350 

number of Rated, Secured, Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of Rs. 

3,35,00,00,000/- The details of NCD’s are as follows : 

  

  

  

  

      

Particulars | No. of | Nominal | Total Amount| Name of _ the | Date of 

Securities | Value Per | (In Rs.) Allottee Allotment 
Unit of 

Security 
Non- 10,000 1,00,000 100,00,00,000/- Federal Bank | 29th 

Convertible Limited September, 
Debentures 2021 

Non- 250 10,00,000 | 25,00,00,000/- Indian Bank 30th 

Convertible November, 

Debentures 2021 

(Listed) 

Non- 600 10,00,000 | 60,00,00,000/- Sunrise Gilts and | 23" = March, 

Convertible Securities 2022 

Debentures Private Limited 

(Listed-MLD) 

Non- 1500 10,00,000 | 50,00,00,000/- El Dorado | 30% = March, 

Convertible Biotech Private | 2022 

Debentures Limited         
  

  
 



D.G. PRAJAPATI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

302, S. B. Bhavan, Rai Dongri, Carter Road No-5, Borivali (E), Mumbai- 400066, Tel: 28613629 

dgprajapati@gmail.com 
  

50,00,00,000/- Fortune Broking | 30% March, 
Intermediary 2022 

Private Limited 
  

50,00,00,000/- Fortune Gilts | 30% = March, 

Private Limited 2022 
              Total 12,350 : 3,35,00,00,000/- | - : 
  

We further report that during the audit period the company has no specific events/ actions 

having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

Date : 26" July 2022 

Place: Mumbai 

For D.G. Prajapati& Associates 

Dharmendra G. Prajapati 

Proprietor 

{C P No.: 4209; FCS No. 6567} 

UDIN : F006567D000686466 

  

The report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - land 

forms an integral part of this report. 

 



D.G. PRAJAPATI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

302, S. B. Bhavan, Rai Dongri, Carter Road No-5, Borivali (E), Mumbai- 400066, Tel: 28613629 

dgprajapati@gmail.com 
Annexure-I 

To, The Members 

TRUST INVESTMENT ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 
109 & 110, First Floor, Balarama Premises Co- Op Soc., 

Village Parigkhari, BandraKurla Complex, Bandra (E), 

Mumbai 400 051 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

2. We had conduct our audit by examining various records and documents including 

minutes, registers, certificates and other records received through electronic mode as 

enabled by the company. We state that we have not done the physical verification of the 

original documents and records. The management has confirmed that the records 
provided to us for audit through electronic mode are final, true and correct. 

3. Further, our audit report is limited to the verification and reporting of the statutory 

compliances on laws/regulations/guidelines listed in our report and the same pertain to 

the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2022. Our report does not include those statutory 

compliances the filing dates for which were extended by Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs/Securities and Exchange Board of India/Reserve Bank of India, as the case may 

be, from time to time and accordingly such extended time limits remain beyond the date 

of our audit report. 

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

Books of Accounts of the Company. 

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

6. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

Date : 26" July 2022 For D.G. Prajapati& Associates 

Place: Mumbai o> 

Shananimederratiad 

Proprietor 

{C P No.: 4209; FCS No. 6567} 
UDIN : F006567D000686466 

 



  
  

  

408, Bhaveshwar Arcade Annexe, 

|... B. S. Marg, Ghatkopar (W), 
Mumbai - 400 086. Sanjay Patel 
Tel: 25000061 Mob.: 9819553486 — e& Associate 
Email : sanjay@caspa.co 

sanjay100708@gmail.com Chartered Accountant 
  

Sanjay Patel B.Com., FCA 

  

Independent Auditor's Report 

To, 

The Members of 

TRUST INVESTMENT ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of ‘TRUST INVESTMENT 

ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED (herein referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information (Collectively referred to as “the Ind AS Financial 

Statements”). 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 

(herein referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein referred to as “Ind AS") prescribed under 

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), statement 

of changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (herein referred to as “the ICAI”) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions 

“of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have tulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Ind AS 

Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including annexures to the Board’s Report 

and Shareholders Information but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon, 

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements — « 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters specified in 

section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

Indian accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and acéounting principles generally 

accepted in India. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of‘adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, 

and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial‘ controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible 

for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

0708) $7}} 
Ag 
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related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable Assurance is a high level of assurance but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS 

Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user 

of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure - I’ a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent 

applicable that: 

(i) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the Purposes of Our audit of the aforesaid 

Ind AS Financial Statements. 

(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of 

the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

(iii) The Balance Sheet, the of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

(iv) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 (as amended). 

      
{ fs 
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(vi) 

3: With 

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Company 

as on March 31, 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none 

of the Indian directors of the Company is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls; refer to our separate 

report in Annexure - II to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 

the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls 

over financial reporting. 

respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and 

to the 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 
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best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

The Company did not have any pending litigations which may impact on its financial 

position except for specifically disclosed in its Ind AS Financial Statements. 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses except for specifically disclosed in its 

Ind AS Financial Statements. 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company, in accordance with relevant provisions 

of the Act. 

This clause is omitted vide notification dated March 24, 2021, in the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021 effective from April 01, 2021. 

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, if any, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 

or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, if any, no funds have been received 

by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

 



  

(vi) 

(vii) 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement. 

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 

2022. 

This clause pertaining to accounting software for maintaining its books of account 

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been 

operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit 

trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 

company as per the statutory requirements for record retention has been postponed 

from financial year commencing on or after the April 01, 2022 vide notification dated 

April 01, 2021 in the companies (Audit and Auditors) Second Amendment Rules, 2021. 

4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

The provision relating to section 197 of the Act relating to the Company has paid / provided 

managerial remuneration is not applicable to private limited company, 

ICAI UDIN: 22100708AJXZKU6441 

For Sanj 

  

Patel & Associates 

Chartyred Abcountants 

ICAVFiym Begistration Number: 116169W 

  

CA Sanjay Patel 

Membership Number: 100708 

Date : May 30, 2022 

Place : Mumbai 
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‘Annexure - I’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of 

TRUST INVESTMENT ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED, on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the 

year ended March 31, 2022 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 

Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 

explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal 

course of audit, and to the best of our Knowledge and belief, we report that: 

(i) 
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(a) (A) According to the information and explanation provided by management and the 

records examined by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars including quantitative details and situation of the Property, Plant and 

Equipment. 

(a) (B) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars including quantitative details and situation of the Intangible Assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant & 

Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 

size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, 

Plant & Equipment were physically verified by the Management during the year, no 

material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanation provided by management and _ the 

records examined by us, the title Deeds of all the Immovable Properties (other than 

properties where the company is lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in the 

favour of lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company. 

(d) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, the Company is following the Cost Model for accounting of 

Property, Plant & Equipment and accordingly, Revaluation of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and Intangible Assets is not permitted, Hence 

reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, there are no proceedings initiated during the year and/or are 

pending during any of the preceding financial years against the company for holding any 

Benami Property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as 

amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Therefore, reporting under Clause 3(i)(e) of 

the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 



  

(ii) (a) The Company is engaged in the business of Financial Service and does not have any 

physical Inventory as at the Balance Sheet date. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of 

the said Order for Physical Verification is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) As per examination and information provided by the management and the records 

examined by us, during the year, the company has sanctioned working capital limits in 

excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions against 

the security of its current assets. The Company is engaged in activity of Financial 

Services and hence is not required to file quarterly return to Banks and Financial 

Institutions. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, during the year, the company has made investments in, 

provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of 

loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any 

other parties. 

a) The company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, 

or stood guarantee , or provided security to :- 

  

  

    

          

| Amount (in Lakhs) “] 

| Particulars Subsidiaries/Joint 
/Jo Others 

Ventures/Associates 

“Aggregate amountduring the years] CON CSN 
| Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 9000 Lakhs Nil 

  

  

b) According to the information and explanation provided by the management 

and the records examined by us, loans and advances in the nature of loans, the 

schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 

stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular 

c) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, in respect of loans granted by the company the 

schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest is stipulated and 
repayments are regular. 

d) According to the information and explanation provided by the management 

and the records examined by us, there is no amount overdue for any loans and 

advances in the nature of Loans granted by the Company during the year. 

e) According to the information and explanation provided by the management 

and the records examined by us, the company has not renewed or extended or 

fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to same 

parties. 

f) According to the information and explanation provided by the management 

and the records examined by us, the company has not granted loans or 

advances in the nature the of loans either repayable on demand or without 

specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
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(iv) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

(viii) 
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According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, the company has, wherever applicable, complied the 

provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 

loans, investments, guarantees and security. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, company has not accepted deposits / amounts deemed to be 

deposits as per the directive issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provision of the 

section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 

made thereunder. Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the said Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of 

cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any 

of its products. 

(a) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, in respect of statutory dues including Provident Fund, 

Employees State Insurance Scheme, Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 

Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Cess have generally been 

deposited regularly with the appropriate authorities, as appearing in the books of 

accounts. Further, there are no dues undisputed in respect of Income tax, Sales tax, 

Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Cess 

outstanding as at Balance Sheet date for a period of more than six months from the 

date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) 

which have not been deposited as on the Balance Sheet date on account of any 

dispute. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 

records examined by us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income 

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, which is not 

recorded in the Books of Accounts. Hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the said 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 

other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

 



(x) 

(xi) 

(b) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the company has not been declared as willful defaulter 

by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the year. 

(c) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the company has not obtained any term loan during the 

year. 

(d) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the funds raised on short term basis have not been 

utilized for long term purposes during the year. Hence reporting under clause 

3(ix)(d) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures. 

(f) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on 

the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

(a) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial 

public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence reporting 

under clause 3(x)(a) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or 

private placements of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 

year. Hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the said Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

(a) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 

the records examined by us, no fraud has been noticed or reported during the year on 

the Company or by the Company. 

(b) Since no fraud has been noticed or reported during the year on the Company or by 

the Company, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 is required to be filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 

13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) with the Central 

Government. Hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the said Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 
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(xii) 

(xiii) 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

(xvi) 

(c) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 
the records examined by us, no whistle-blower complaint has been received by the 
company during the year. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 
records examined by us, the company is not covered under the category of Nidhi 
company. Hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the said Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 
records examined by us, the company has complied with Section 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of all transactions with related parties and details 
have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(a) (a) According to the information and explanation provided by the management 
and the records examined by us, the company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit are considered by 
us and has been dealt with, as per SA - 610 issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 
records examined by us, the company has, wherever applicable, complied with 
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of any non-cash 

transactions entered with directors or persons connected with him. 

(a) The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(b) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 
the records examined by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvii)(b) of 

the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 
the records examined by us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under 
clause 3(xvii)(c) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and 
the records examined by us, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under 
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(xvil) 

(xviii) 

(xix) 

(xx) 

clause 3(xvii)(d) of the said Order for the Group not having any other CIC as a part of 
the Group is not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 
records examined by us, the company has incurred cash losses in the financial! year 
ended FY 21-22 of Rs.81,033,13 Lacs. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the Management and the 
records examined by us, there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the 
company during the year. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the Management and on 
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind 
AS Financial Statements examined by us, we are of the opinion that no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fali due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

According to the information and explanation provided by the management and the 
records examined by us, the company is covered under the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. The company 
does not have any ongoing project as at the Balance Sheet date, 

ICAL UDIN: 22100708AJXZKU6441 

For Sanjay Patel & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Fir    

CA Sanjay Patel 

Registration Number: 116169W 
ZNSE ASN 

  

   

  

Mumbai 
|} 

   

Membership Number: 100708 
Date 

Place 

: May 30, 2022 

: Mumbai 
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditors Report 
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date) 
  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) of Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited (“the 
Company”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Trust Investment 
Advisors Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31s March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility: 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

¢ 
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exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that: 

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Emphasis on Matter 

The Company has majorly documented its processes and is in the process of documenting 

framework for Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting. However, based on the 

procedures performed by us during the course of our audit in accordance with Standards of 

Auditing, no material weaknesses have been observed in the Internal Controls, in so far as they 

relate to preparation and presentation of Financial Statements. 
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Opinion: 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

ICAI UDIN: 22100708AJXZKU6441 

For Sanjay Patel & Associates 

Chartered 

ICAI Firn’Regigtration Number: 116169W 

    
CA Sanjay Patel 

Membership Number: 100708 

Date : May 30, 2022 

Place : Mumbai 
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Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Balance Sheet 
(Rs in lacs) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

Sr, No. Particulars Note No. wich 2022 Siicetsan, 2021 

ASSETS 

1 Financial Assets 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 273.41 758.31 

(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 5 161.44 26.22 

(c) Receivables 6 

[ Trade Receivables 24,334.41 7,225.29 

(d) Investments 7 1,63,603.88 77,135.97 

(e) Other Financial Assets 8 348.19 1,862.04 

Total Financial Assets [A] 1,88,721.34 87,027.83 

2 Non-Financial Assets 

(a) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 27.07 47.01 

(b) Investment Properties 10 1,476.39 1,476.39 

(c) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 1,058.99 1,077.69 

(d) Capital Work-In-Progress 12 - - 

(e) Other Intangible Assets 13 12.78 16.31 

(OD Other Non-Financial Assets 14 604.06 273.75 

Total Non-Financial Assets [B] 3,179.28 2,891.16 

Total Assets [A+B] 1,91,900.62 89,918.98 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

1 Financial Liabilities 

(a) Payables 15 

I Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,906.50 138.39 

micro and small enterprises 

(b) Debt Securities 16 62,803.04 30,362.39 

(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 17 50,723.50 22,515.20 

(d) Other Financial Liabilities 18 711.40 902.96 

Total Financial Liabilities [A] 1,16,144.44 53,918.94 

2 Non-Financial Liabilities 

(a) Provisions 19 5,317.60 96.62 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 9 - - 

(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 20 2,548.93 729.02 

Total Non-Financial Liabilities [B] 7,866.53 825.64 

3 Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 21 650.00 650.00 

(b) Other Equity 22 67,239.66 34,524.40 

Total Equity [C] 67,889.66 35,174.40 

Total Liabilities and Equity [A+B+C] 1,91,900.62 89,918.98         

The accompanying notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For Sanjay Pa 

CA Sanjay Patel 

Proprietor 
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Membership No. : 100708 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

    mAs Poo we. 
Nipa Sketh Nisha Mehta Aayushi Mulasi 

Dirg¢tor Director Company Secretary 

DIN: 00081064 ~=DIN: 00081102 ACS - 36046 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 

 



Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
(Rs in lacs) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

N ‘cul Note N For the Year ended | For the Year ended 

Nt: Particulars ote No. March 31,2022. | March 31, 2021 

I Revenue from Operations 

(i) Fees and Commission Income 23 7,830.94 2,381.93 

(ii) Dividend Income 24, 46,576.83 1,369.70 

(iii) Net Gain / Loss on Fair Value change of Debt Securities 25 3,100.54 10,483.11 

Total Revenue from Operations| 57,508.31 14,234.74 

II Other Income 26 8.67 7.31 

Il Total Income [I + I] ‘ 57,516.98 14,242.05 

IV Expenses 

(i) Finance Costs 27 6,837.20 5,867.74 

(ii) Net Loss on Fair Value Changes on Investment 28 333.79 - 

(iii) Impairment on Financial Instruments 29 39,65 (113.27) 

(iv) En.ployee Benefits Expenses 30 6,514.35 2,202.28 

(v) Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment 31 157.75 146.58 

(vi) Other Expenses 32 3,845.66 1,911.37 

Total Expenses 17,728.40 10,014.71 

Vv Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax [III-IV] 39,788.58 4,227.34 

VI Exceptional Items - - 

VIL Profit / (Loss) before Tax [V-VI] 39,788.58 4,227.34 

VIII Tax Expenses 

(i) Current Tax 6,400.00 400,00 

(ii) Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) 19.95 (244.86) 

(iii) Short/ (excess) provision of earlier years 639.40 - 

IX Profit / (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations [VII- 32,729,23 4,072.20 

VIII] 

x Profit / (Loss) for the period 32,729.23 4,072.20 

' 

XI Other Comprehensive Income 33 

A (i) [Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (18.67) (3.80) 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 4.70 0.96 

profit or loss 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (13.97) (2.85) 

XII ‘Total Comprehensive Income for the period [X+XI] 32,715.25 4,069.35 

XII Earnings per Equity Share (For Continuing Operations) 34 

Basic 503.53 62.65 

Diluted 503.53 62.65 

The accompanying notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of the financial statements .   
  

As per our report of even date 

For Sanjay Patel and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

[pet       

  

CA Sanjay Patel Nipa S Nisha Mehta Aayushi\Mulasi 

Proprietor Dir Director Company Secretary 

Membership No. : 100708 : 00081064 DIN: 00081102 ACS - 36046 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 
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Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
(Rs in lacs) 

  

Particulars 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

  

      

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Profit Before Tax 39,788.58 4,227.34 

Adjustments for Non-Cash / Non-Operating Expenses/Income: 

Depreciation 157.75 146.58 

Loss / (Profit) on sale of investments (net) 333.79 (318,17) 

Loss / (Profit) from share of LLP 243,98 = 

Interest on Debt Securities 2,780.63 2,590.87 

Interest expense and other finance costs 3,622.39 3,123.89 

Interest accrued but not due (45.10) 342.12 

Interest on security deposit (2.60) (0.22) 

Dividend income (46,576.83) (1,369.70) 

Impairment on Financial Instruments 39.65 (113.27) 

(39,446.34) 4,402.09 

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 342.24 8,629.43 

Adjustments for movement in Working Capital 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables 1,768.15 75.00 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (191.56) 106.97 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilities (5,180.06) (210.01) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Short-Term Provisions. 5,202.31 4.92 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (17,148.77) 1,726.12 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Asset 1,558.94 33.21 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Financial Asset (330.31) (142.18) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Investments (Debt Securites held (67,019.37) (2,836.06) 

for trading) 

Cash generated from in Operating Activities (80,998.43) 7,387.41 

Taxes Paid / Refund received (34.70) (399.04) 

Net cash (Used In) / Generated from Operating Activities (A) (81,033.13) 6,988.37 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (135.50) (77.75) 

Purchase of fixed deposit (135.22) (26.22) 

Equity Investment in Subsidiaries (1,500.00) (514.00) 

Equity Investment in Associates (1,867.80) - 

Debt Investment in Associates (3,878.03) - 

Contribution to LLP (249.60) - 

Purchase of Equity shares (13,232.07) (225.80) 

Sale of Equity shares. 1,184.30 217.81 

Purchase of Mutual Fund units (43,231.53) = 

Sale of Mutual Fund units 42,768.42 - 

Dividend Income 46,576.83 1,369.70 

Net cash (Used In) / Generated from Investing Activities (B) 26,299.79 743.73 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from issue of Commerical paper 1,42,220.65 83,443.69 

Repayment for Commerical paper issued (1,33,280.00) (81,400.00) 

Proceeds from issue of Non-convertiable debentures 33,500.00 10,000.00 

Repayment for Non-convertiable debentures issued (10,000.00) (17,000.00) 

Repayment for Borrowings (9,39,028.38) (7,46,615.29) 

Proceeds from Borrowings 9,67,236.60 7,90,070,50 

Interest received 2.60 0.22 

Payment of Interest (6,403.03) (5,714.76) 

Net cash (Used In) / Generated from Financing Activities (C) 54,248.44 (7,215.63) 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (484.90) 516.47 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the Beginning of the Period 758.31 241.84 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the Period 273.41 758,31    



Note : The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash 

Flows’, as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 

2015 (as amended). 

  

  

          

For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cash and cash equivalents 

a. Cash on hand 4.64 4.70 

b. Balances with banks in current accounts 268.77 753.61 

Total 273.41 758.31 
  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited        
CA SAnjay Patel : / : Nipa Sh Nisha Mehta 
Proprietor Dire Director Company Secretary 

Membership No. : 100708 : 00081064 DIN: 00081102 ACS - 36046 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 Date: 30th May, 2022
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Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

A. Equity Share Capital 

1) As at March 31,2022 

  

  

  

  

            

Balance as at April 01, 2021 Changes in Equity |Restated balance as |Changes in equity Balance as at March 31, 
Share Capital due to Jat April 01, 2021 share capital during |2022 

prior period errors the current year 

650.00 - 650.00 = 650.00 

2) As at March 31,2021 

Balance as at April 01, 2020 Changes in Equity |Restated balance as |Changes in equity [Balance as at March 31, | 
Share Capital due to |at April 01, 2020 share capital during |2021 | 
prior period errors ' the current year 

l 650.00 : 650.00 ‘ 650.00 | 
  

B. Other Equity 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

: Debenture 3 : Particulars Redemption Reserve Retained Earnings Total 

Balance as at April 01, 2021 1,158.90 33,365.50 34,524.40 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 32,715.25 32,715;25 
Transfer to / from retained earnings (255.62) 255.62 - 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 903.29 66,336.37 67,239.66 

| Balance as at April 01, 2020 1,731.24 28,723.82 30,455.05 
‘fotal Comprehensive Income for the year - 4,069.35 4,069.35 
Transfer to / from retained earnings (572.33) 572.33 : 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,158.90 33,365.50 34,524.40       

The accompanying notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For Sanjay Patel and Associates 

Chartered 

Firm Regn No./116169W 

  

CA Sanjay Patel 

Proprietor 

Membership No. : 100708 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 

    
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

: 00081064 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 

Jeg 
Nisha Mehta 

Director 

DIN: 00081102 

us. 

Company Secretary 

ACS - 36046 

 



Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at 

and for the period ended 31 March 2022 

Corporate Information 

Trust Investment Advisors Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated in 2006. The company is registered under 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as Category 1 Merchant Banker and Portfolio 

Manager. Trust Investment Advisors Pvt. Ltd. has obtained Portfolio Manager Certificate of 
Registration from SEBI effective from 01.10.2006 and has obtained Merchant Banker Permanent 

Certificate of Registration from SEBI effective from 29.03.2007. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated 

otherwise. 

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

a. Ind AS 

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian 

Accounting Standards [“Ind AS”] notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
[“the Act”] read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other 

relevant provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies 
and measurement bases, as summarized hereunder. These accounting policies have been 

applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements 

Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 

following: 
* Certain financial instruments are measured at fair value. 
* Certain financial instruments are measured at amortised cost less impairment loss. 

Preparation of Financial Statements 

The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company as defined 

in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. As per the 
format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 on 11 

October 2018, the Company presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

and the Statement of Changes in Equity in the order of liquidity. 

Use of Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management 
to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 

policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent 

liabilities) and disclosures as of the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenue and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the Company becomes aware of the changes in 

circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 

periods.



  

Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at 
and for the period ended 31 March 2022 

e. Rounding off 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the 

nearest lakhs as per the requirements. 

B. Standards/ Amendments issued but not effective 

The company has applied the following standards in their annual reporting period 

commencing April 1, 2019 

e Ind AS 116, Leases 

e Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments ~ Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes 

e Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee 

Benefits 

e Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes 

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior 

periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. 

C. Revenue Recognition 

a. Income from Operations 

Company has a policy of accounting income like interest, Brokerage, Management Fees, 

etc. on accrual and due basis, income become due on the date of bill. Portfolio 
Management fees are computed in accordance with Portfolio Management Agreements 

and SEBI Regulations. Merchant Banking Fees are accounted on the basis of completion 

of assignment/ project. 

b. Interest income / expense and dividend income 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The 
‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 

or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to: 
i. the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or 

ii. the amortised cost of the financial liability. 

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the 
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or to the amortised 

cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired 
subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective 

interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit- 

impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis. 

Interest income / expense on financial instruments at FVTPL is not included in fair value 

changes but presented separately. 

Dividend Income - When right to receive is established. 

c. Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 

The realised gains / losses from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting



Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at 
and for the period ended 31 March 2022 

period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and 

its settlement price. The company follows ‘deal date’ accounting for recording purchase 
and sale of transactions in securities. Purchase Cost includes interest accrued, brokerage, 

other transaction charges if any. 

D. Income Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s 

taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to 
unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent 

that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this 
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 

respectively. 

Current Tax 

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income 
for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability 

on a net basis. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial 

recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been 

enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply 
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is 

settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax 

losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those 

temporary differences and losses. 

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying 
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the Company is able to control 
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences 

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation 

authority. 

E. Leases 

Leases under Ind AS 116 (From 01 April 2019) 

The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of a 
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
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Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at 
and for the period ended 31 March 2022 
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a. 

As a lessee 

The Company leases some office premises. The Company previously classified these 
leases as operating leases under AS 19 - Leases when a substantial portion of the risk 

and rewards of the ownership were retained by the lessor. Under Ind AS 116 - Leases, 

the Company recognises Right-of-Use (ROU) and lease liabilities for these leases ie. 

these leases are on-balance sheet. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that 
are not paid at the commencement date and is discounted using the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate. The Company’s incremental borrowing rate has been 

determined at 10%. 

ROU assets are measured at their carrying amount at the commencement date and are 

discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial 

application. The ROU assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method 
from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. 

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in one of the following: 
i. the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual 

value guarantee, or 

ii. the Company’s assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 

termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the ROU asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if 

the carrying amount of the ROU asset has been reduced to nil. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value. 

Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets 
are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the 

asset. 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair 
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions. 
Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit 

or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit 
loss allowance (ECL) is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost.
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When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on 

initial recognition, the entity recognizes the difference as follows: 

a. When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical 

asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only 
data from observable markets, the difference is recognized as a gain or loss. 

b. Inall other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day 
one profit or loss is determined individually. It is either amortized over the life of the 

instrument, deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined using market 

observable inputs, or realized through settlement. 

When the Company revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the 
respective financial assets or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate 
discounted using the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognized in profit or 

loss. 

Fair value of financial instruments: 

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting 
purpose. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date 
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 

technique. 

Financial assets 

a. Classification and subsequent measurement 

The Company has applied Ind AS 109 and classifies its financial assets in the following 

measurement categories: 

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); 

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD); or 

«= Amortised Cost 
= Cost 

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates are valued at Cost, in terms 

of Para 10 IndAS 27 in these Standalone Financial Statements. 

1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions 

are met: 

" The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and 

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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i) Equity instruments 

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the 
issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation 

to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. 

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially 
measured at fair value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect 
to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVIPL. The Company makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument 

is recognised as revenue from operations in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless 

the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes 
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized 

in OCI Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as 
‘Revenue from operations’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. Investments in mutual funds 

Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss 

(EVTPL). 

Impairment 

The Company recognizes impairment allowances using Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) 
method on all the financial assets that are not measured at FVPTL: 

ECL are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows: 
« Financials assets that are not credit impaired - as the present value of all cash 

shortfalls that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
« Financials assets with significant increase in credit risk - as the present value of all 

cash shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the 

financial assets. 
« Financials assets that are credit impaired - as the difference between the gross 

carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows. 

Financial assets are written off / fully provided for when there is no reasonable 
probability of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement 

activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice 

where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

De-recognition 

A financial asset is derecognised only when: 

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 

retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes 

a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
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Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has 

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such 
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred 

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset 
is not derecognised. 

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised 

if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 

Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be 
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Financial liabilities 

a. Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 

classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is 

designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at 
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in 

profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also 
recognised in Statement of Profit or loss. 

b. Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value 
with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c. De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is 

discharged, cancelled or expires. 

H. Offsetting Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 

where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The 

legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in 
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the 

Company or the counterparty. 

I. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the 

assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
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item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying 

amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in 

which they are incurred. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to allocate their cost, net of 

their residual values, over their estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the date of 

installation till date the assets are sold or disposed. Leasehold improvements are amortized 
over the term of underlying lease. 

Derecognition 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal 

or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses 

on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Intangible Assets 

Measurement at recognition: 

Intangible assets are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefit 
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and its cost can be reliably measured. 
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and 
impairment, if any. 

The Company amortizes intangible assets on a written down value basis over the three years 

commencing from the month in which the asset is first put to use. The Company provides 
pro-rata amortization from the day the asset is put to use, 

  

  

    
  

Assets Useful life 

Computer software 3 years 

Derecognition: 

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are 
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Investment Property 

Investment Properties are properties held to earn rentals and / or for capital appreciation. 
These are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements 
for cost model. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when it is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included 
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. For transition to Ind AS, 

the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment property 
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recognised as of April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use 
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date. 

L. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on 

internal/ external factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of asset is 
the higher of its fair value or value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash 
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current 

market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to it. If such recoverable 
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset 

belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable 

amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement 

of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment 
loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An Impairment loss is reversed if there has 
been a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made 
only to the extent that the assets carrying amount would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss been recognised. 

M. Provisions and Contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 

as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 

required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet 
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. 

Expected future operating losses are not provided for. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 

be made. 

N. Employee Benefits 

Short-term obligations 

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related services are rendered. The 

Company recognises the costs of bonus payments when it has a present obligation to make 
such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
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Contribution to Provident Fund 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under Provident Fund, 
a defined contribution plan in which both employees and the company makes monthly 

contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary, the contributions as 
specified under the Law are paid to the Provident Fund and Pension Fund to the provident 
fund authorities. The actuarial gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

as per Ind AS 19. 

Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period (excluding other 
comprehensive income) attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus 

element in equity shares issued during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
period as adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results 

are anti-dilutive. 

Events after Reporting Date 

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that 

existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the 
financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature 

are only disclosed. 

3. Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 

underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Any changes to accounting estimates are 

recognised prospectively. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as 
well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized 

in the financial statements are included in the following notes: 

A. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities: 

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other 

contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is 
recorded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered 

possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 
Contingencies, the likelihood of which is remote, are not disclosed in the financial statements. 

Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts 
are received or receivable.
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B. Allowance for impairment of Investments: 

Judgements are required in assessing the value and expected credit losses on investments and 
in determining whether a provision against them is required. Factors considered include the 
realisability of the asset, market price, value of collateral and any possible actions that can be 

taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 

C. Recognition of Deferred tax assets: 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax credits 

to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the 

probability with regard to the realization of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the 
history of the entity and budgeted data for the future. 

D. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets: 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in 

order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortization to be recorded during any 
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule II of the Companies 

Act, 2013 or are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and taking 
into account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.
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Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

; As at As at 

SrNo. Rarheulars March 31, 2022 } March 31, 2021 
(i) | Cash on Hand 4.64 4.70 

(ii) _| Balances with Banks 

Current Accounts 268.77 753.61 

Total 273.41 758.31 

Note 5 Bank Balances other than above 

. As at As at 

aR Fareleulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 
(i) | Fixed Deposits (Maturity more than 3 months but within 12 - 1.00 

months) 

(ii)_| Fixed Deposits (Maturity more than 12 months) 157.00 25,00 

(iii)_| Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 444 0.22 

Total 161.44 26.22 

Note 6 Receivables 

As at As at 
Sr. No. i Beno iii March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

I Trade Receivables * 

(a) Receivables (Secured) - Considered Good . - 

Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss - - 

(b) Receivables (Unsecured) - Considered Good 24,391.99 7,265.41 

Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss (101.20) (72.65) 

(©) Receivables which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk 87.26 65.06 

Less: Allowance for [mpairment Loss (43.63) (32.53) 

Sub-Total [I] 24,334.42 7,225.29 

Il Other Receivables - : 

Sub-Total [II] - - 

Total 24,334.42 7,225.29 

* Debtors of Rs. 6,303.18 lac is due from directors and / or private companies in which any directors is a partner, or a 

director or a member. 

Note 6.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule 

As at March 31, 2022 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

Sr. No. Particulars payment 

Less than 6 6 months - 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total 

months years 

(i) |Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 24,391.99 - - : 24,391.99 

(ii) [Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 

credit risk - 15.89 8.20 50.31 12.86 87.26 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired a 7 = = = s 

(iii) | Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - 

(iv) [Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 

credit risk - = - = - 

(v) {Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired = = z zi E 2 

Total| 24,391.99 15.89 8.20 50.31 12.86 | 24,479.25                    
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Note 7 Investments 

At Fair Value 

Sr. No. Particulars Amortized Cost | Through Profit Total 

Or Loss 

As at March 31, 2022 

(i) Mutual Funds 468.05 468.05 

(ii) Debt Securities (Held for Trading)** - 1,26,539.14 1,26,539.14 

(iii) Equity Instruments - 13,996.43 13,996.43 

(iv) (a)_| Subsidiaries - Equity (Measured at Cost) 15,658.08 : 15,658.08 

(b) | Subsidiaries - Debt Securities (Measured at Amortized Cost) 40.00 : 40.00 

Subsidiaries - Capital Contribution (Measured at Cost) 6.35 - 6.35 

(v) Associates - Equity (Measured at Cost) 3,017.80 

(vi) Associates - Debt Securities (Measured at Amortized Cost) 3,878.03 - 3,878.03 

Total - Gross [A] 22,600.26 1,41,003.62 | 1,60,586.08 

(i) Investments Outside India 128.08 - 128.08 

(ii) Investments in India 22,472.18 1,41,003.62 | 1,63,475.81 

Total [B] 22,600.26 1,41,003.62 | 1,63,603.88 

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance - 

Total - Net 22,600.26 1,41,003.62 | 1,63,603.88 

As at March 31, 2021 

(i) Debt Securities (Held for Trading)** - 59,519.77 59,519.77 

(ii) Equity Instruments - 2,287.38 2,287.38 

(iii) (a) | Subsidiaries - Equity (Measured at Cost) 14,158.08 - 14,158.08 

(b) | Subsidiaries - Debt Securities (Measured at Amortized Cost) 40.00 - 40.00 

Subsidiaries - Capital Contribution (Measured at Cost) 0.73. - 0.73 

(iv) Associates (Measured at Cost) 1,150.00 - 1,150.00 

Total - Gross [A] 15,348.82 61,807.15 77,155.97 

(i) Investments Outside India 128.08 - 128.08 

(ii) Investments in India 15,220.74 61,807.15 77,027.89 

Total [B] 15,348.82 61,807.15 77,155.97 
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance - 

Total - Net 15,348.82 61,807.15 77,155.97 

+ Debt Securities are entirely held by the Company for the sole purpose of trading in such securities, and 

are therefore valued at FVTPL. 

Note 8 Other Financial Assets 

. As at As at 
Sr. No. me Rarkledtiae March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 

(i)_| Security Deposits 208.55 98.26 
(ii) | Accrued Interest on Debt Securities 135.18 90.08 

(iii)_| Other Advances 4.46 1,673.69 

Total 348.20 1,862.04           
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Note 9 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net) 

As at As at 
. No. Particul Step antrculats March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

(i) | Timing Differences 27.07, 47.02 

Total 27.07 47.02 

Note 10 Investment Properties 

7 As at As at 

at No: Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 
(i) | Balance at the beginning of the Year 1,476.39 1,476.39 

(ii) | Addition during the year - - 

(iii)_| Deduction during the year - - 

(iv)_| Depreciation for the year : : 

Total 1,476.39 1,476.39 

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss in relation to As at Asat 

investment March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

(i) | Rental Income from Investment Property - - 

ii Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that - - 

(ii) generated rental income during the period 

(iii) | Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that 7.28 7.97     did not generate rental income during the period       
  

Note: The title deeds of Ute Investment properties is held in the name of the Company. 

  

(Rs in lacs)
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Note 11 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Current Year     
Particulars Balance as at 

April 01, 2021 

171.04 

2,386.57 

Previous Year 

Particulars Balance as at 
01, 2020 

Total 

Gross 

Disposals 

Disposa 

77.75 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2022 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2021 

Balance as at 
2021 

Balance as at 
2020 

During the 
Year 

/ 

During the 
Year 

44.29 

Balance as at 

Disposals | vrarch 31, 2022 

Amortization 

Balance as at 
Disposals! starch 31, 2021 

Net 

Balance as at 

March 31, 2022 

823. 

82.4 

1,058.99 

(Rs in lacs) 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2021 

865.24 

75.62 

Net Block 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2021 

Balance as at 
01, 2020 

909. 

  

1,142.78 

* The title deeds of the office premises is held in the name of the Company. 

Note 12 Capital Work-In-Progress (Rs in laes) 

Particulars Balance as at Balance as at 
Capitalised 

01, 2021 

Particulars Balance as at 

01, 2020 

1 

Capitalised 

March 31, 2022 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2021 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

Note 13 Other Intangible Assets 

‘Gross Block Depreciation / Amortization Net Block 

“™ “es Apri, 2001 | ations] Disposals | wey st 2022 | Apt on, an2i| "Year | HP0I6| starch 2022 | March, 202 | March 202 
(i) |Computer Software 57.07, = z 57.07, 40.76 3.53 : 44.29 12.78 16.32 | 

Total 57.07 - - 57.07 40.76 3.53 - 44.29 12.78 16,32 

Gross Biock Depreciation / Amortization Net Block _ | 

i Ferd ke ee ere eel Ge eed Pere 
(i)_|Computer Software 43.16 13.91 = 57.07 37.08, 3.72 40.76 16.32 6.13, 

Total 413.16 13.91 7 57.07 | 37,03 3.72 - £0.76 16.32 6.13                       

    i Mumba E\) 

? \M. No. 1007087 9°) yt).
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March 2022 

(Rs in lacs) 

Note 14 Other Non-Financial Assets 

‘ As at As at 

oe Ne: Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

(i) _| Prepaid Expenses 76.17 33.26 

(ii)_| Staff Loan 167.60 157.90 

(iii)_ | GST ‘put Credit 354.58 75.46 

(iv) | Prepaid lease 5.72, 175 

(v)_| Other receivable 7 5.39 

Total 604.06 273.76 

Note 15 Payables 

5 As at As at 

St. No. Paticllas March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 
I Trade Payables 

* i) - 

(i) |total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises* ‘ 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1,906.50 138.39 

and small enterprises 
Sub-Total (I) 1,906.50 138.39 

II Other Payables - - 

Sub-Total (II) - : 

Total 1,506.50 138.39 

Note 15.1 Trade Payables ageing schedule 

Sr. No. Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years a 5 Total 

(i) MSME : - - : = 

(ii) Others 1,868.00 10.04 2.27 26.18 | 1,906.50 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - : = = 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 

Total 1,868.00 10.04 2,27 26.18 | 1,906.50 

Note 16 Debt Securities 

| At Fair Value | Designated at Fair 

Sr. No. Particulars Amortized Cost '| through Profit Value through Total 
Or Loss Profit Or Loss 

As at March 31, 2022 ‘ 

A 

(i) |Liability Component of Compound Financial - - - - 

Instruments 

(ii) |Others (Bonds, Debentures, etc.) 62,803.04 - - 62,803.04 

Total [A] 62,803.04 - 2 62,803.04 

B 

(i) |Debt Securities in India 62,803.04 : “ 62,803.04 

(ii) |Debt Securities Outside India - - - = 

Total [B] 62,803.04 - : 62,803.04 

As at March 31, 2021 

A 

(i) |Liability Component of Compound Financial - - : < 

Instruments 

(ii) |Others (Bonds, Debentures, etc.) 30,362.39 - - 30,362.39 

Total [A] 30,362.39 , ‘ 30,362.39 

B 

(i) |Debt Securities in India 30,362.39, - - 30,362.39 

(ii) |Debt Securities Outside India - : é 5 

Total [B] 30,362.39 - - 30,362.39                 
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March 2022 

(Rs in lacs) 

Note 17 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

At Fair Value | Designated at Fair 

Sr. No. Particulars Amortized Cost | through Profit Value through Total 

Or Loss Profit Or Loss 

As at March 31, 2022 

(a) Term Loans 

(i) |From Financial Institutions 31,054.42 - - 31,054.42 

(b) Loans Repayable on Demand 

(i) {From Banks 19,669.08 = : 19,669.08 

Total [A] 50,723.50 - - 50,723.50 

Borrowings in India 50,723.50 - - 50,723.50 

Borre-wings outside India - - - - 

Total [B] 50,723.50 - - 50,723.50 

As at March 31, 2021 

(a) Term Loans 4 

(i) | From Financial Institutions 9,954.80 e - 9,954.80 

(b) Loans Repayable on Demand - = z 

(i) | From Banks 12,560.39 - - 12,560.39 

Total [A] 22,515.20 - - 22,515.20 

Borrowings in India 22,515.20 - 22,515.20 

Borrowings outside India - = - - 

Total [B] 22,515.20 - - 22,515.20 

Note 18 Other Financial Liabilities 

As at As at 
Sr. No. i 

No Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 
(i) [Interest Payables 615.50 852,52 

(ii) |Lease Liabilities 95.90 50.44 

Total 711.40 902.96 

Note 19 Provisions 

7 As at As at 
Sr. No. I; Farslculare March 31, 2022 4] March 31, 2021 

(i)_|Provision for Compensated Absenses 52.01 - 

(ii)_|Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 43) 148.87 96.62 
(iii) [Provision for tax (net of tds and advance tax) 5,116.72 : 

Total 5,317.60 96.62 

Note 20 

Sr. No. 

  

Other Non-Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Payable 
Taxes 

As at As at 

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

114.32 127.51 
116.74 194.50: 
17.87 407.00 

2,548.93 729.02 
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Note 21 Equity Share Capital (Rs in lacs) 

5 As at As at 

enn Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

A Authorized Share Capital 

No. of Equity Shares of INR 10 each 75,00,000 75,00,000 

Amount 750.00 750.00 

B Issued, paid up and Subscribed Capital 

(i) _|Equity Shares 

No. of Equity Shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 65,00,000 65,00,000 

Amount 650.00 650.00 

Total Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital 650.00 650.00 

21.1 Terms / Rights attached to the Shares 

Equity Shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 each. 

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder 

of the equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be 
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.The Company declares and pays dividend in 

Indian Rupees. 

21.2 Reconciliation of Number of Shares Outstanding 

Particulars As at As at 

anew March 31, 2022 || March 31, 2021 
Equity Shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 

At the Beginning of the Year 65,00,000 65,00,000 

Add: Shares Issued via Private Placement : = 
Add: Shares Issued under Employee Benefit Schemes - - 

Less: Shares bought back = 
At the End of the Year 65,00,000.00 65,00,000.00 

21,3 Shareholders holding more than 5% of Share Capital 

As at As at 
f t Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

Equity Shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 

Trust Capital Services (India) Private Limited 
No. of Shares 64,90,000 64,90,000 

Amount 649,00 649,00 

Percentage (%) 99.85% 99.85%       
  

/ 6 
if NiumDal 

+ \M. No. 100708 / 

  

  

 



21.4 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 
  

  

  

  

  

  

mi Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares % Change 

No during the 
year 

Equity Shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 

1___|Trust Capital Services (India) Private Limited 64,90,000 99.85% 0% 
2 |Nipa Utpal Sheth 1,000 0.02% 0% 

3 |Nisha Mehta 9,000 0.14% 0% 

65,00,000 100.00%               
21.5 The company has not issued any bonus shares / shares for consideration (in part or in full) other than cash in the 

past five financial years. 

21.6 The Company has not bought back any shares in the past five financial years 

21.7 The Company has not forfeited any shares in the reporting period 

21.8 The Company does not have any unpaid / uncalled shares 

21.9 The Company does not have any shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for sale of 
shares or disinvestment 

Note 22 Other Equity 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 

Debenture Red tion Reserve 903.29 1,158.90 

Retained Earnin 66,336.37 33,365.50 

otal 67,239.66 34,524.40 

  

Retained Earnings refer to the accumulated Total Comprehensive Income left after appropriation to all other reserves 
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Note 23 Fees and Commission Income 

Sr. No Patieal For the Yearended | For the Year ended 

Bien STEHT March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A Fees for Portfolio Management Services (Refer Note no. 37) 2,560.98 764,18 

B Fees for Merchant Banking Services (Refer Note no. 37) 5,261.08 1,590.58 

Cc Advisory Fees for Portfolio Management 8.87 27.17 

Total 7,830.94 2,381.93 

Note 24 Dividend Income 

Sr. No Particul For the Year ended | For the Year ended 

ume articulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A Dividend Income from foregin subsidiary 46,032.71 1,367.08 

B Dividend Income on preference shares 25.00 - 

Cc Dividend Income on equity shares 7.25 2.62 

D Dividend Income on others securities 511.88 - 

Total 46,576.83 1,369.70 

Note 25 Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes 

Sr. No Particul For the Year ended | For the Year ended 

une: seen March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A Net Gain / Loss on Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

(i) }On Trading Portfolio 

Investments 3,100.54 10,164.81 

Total Net Gain / Loss on Fair Value Changes 3,100.54 10,164.81 

Fair Value Changes: 

Realized 2,465.53 11,389.84 

Unrealized 635.00 (1,225.03) 

On Other Investments (Equity shares) 

Total Net Gain / Loss on Fair Value Changes - 318.29 

Fair Value Changes: 

Realized - 25.58 

Unrealized - 292.71 

Total Net Gain / Loss on Fair Value Changes 3,100.54 10,483.11 

Note 26 Other Income 

z For the Year ended For the Year ended 

St. No. Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Interest Income 2.60 0.22 

Net Gain on fair value changes on Investments = 
Other Income 6.07 7.09 

Jal Total 8.67 7.31         
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Note 27 Finance Costs 

(Rs in lacs) 

  

For the Year ended 

March 31, 2022 
For the Year ended 

March 31, 2021 
  

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial 

  

  

  

  

        

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

  

                
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              
  

Sr. No. Particulars. Liabilities measured | Liabilities measured Liabilities Liabilities 

at fair value through | at amortized cost measured at fair measured at 

profit or loss value through amortized cost 
profit or loss 

Interest on Borrowings - 3,622.39 - 3,123.89 

Interest on Debt Securities - 2,780.63 - 2,590.87 

Other Interest Expenses - 8.08 - 4.61 

Other Finane Cost - 426.09 - 148.37 

Total - 6,837.20 - 5,867.74 

Note 28 Net Loss on Fair Value Changes 

Sr. No Particulars For the Yearended | For the Year ended 

HNO. ecu March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Net (Gain) / Loss on Investments 

Realised (351.79) 2 

Unrealised 685.58 = 

Total 333.79 - 

Note 29 Impairment on Financial Instruments 

For the Year ended March 31, 2022 For the Year ended March 31, 2021 

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial 

Sr. No. Particulars Liabilities measured | Liabilities measured Liabilities Liabilities 
at fair value at amortized cost measured at fair measured at 

value amortized cost 

Trade Receivables 39.65 (113.27) 

Total 39.65 - (113.27) = 

Note 30 Employee Benefits Expenses 

7 For the Yearended | For the Year ended 

Sr. No. Rarticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Salaries and Wages 6,397.44 2,156.17 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 9.26 14.70 

Staff Welfare Expenses 5:79 0.66 

Gratuity (Refer note 43) 33.58 4.92 

Compensated Absenses 52.01 - 

Other Employee Benefits 16.28 25.82 

Total 6,514.35 2,202.28 

Note 31 Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment 

Particulars 

Pro , Plant and 

Amortization 

Other In e Assets 

Pro , Plant and 

Other In Assets 

For the Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

154.21 

For the Year ended 

March 31, 2021 

142.86 
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Note 32 Other Expenses 

Sr. No Pacticl For the Year ended For the Year ended 

ve: articutars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs 59,26 51.00 

Repairs and Maintenance 16.40 16.15 

Communication Costs 63.79 15.15 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (refer note no. 51) 7.90 550.00 

Printing and Stationery 2.24 1.82 

Advertisement, Publicity and Business Development Expenses 17.49 52.17 

Auditor's Fees and Expenses (Refer breakup below) 10.95 10.03 

Legal and Professional Charges 1,297.78 829.73. 

Insurance Expenses 444 3.43 

Membership and Subscription Charges 28.11 16.57 
Donations 6.48 9.57 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 32.30 21.04 

Custody Charges (1.12) 3.64 

Software and IT Systems related expenses 179.12 145.06 

Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 0.10 - 

Late Fees on statutory dues 11.54 106.09 

Penalty charges 14.19 - 

Exchange Difference (0.09) - 

Security expense 15.21 20.25 

Tender Fees 161 

Recruitment Expense 13.06 24.34 

Other advances written off 1,673.14 

STT charges on equity investments 17.00 - 

GST Expenses 85.62 : 

Share of loss from LLP 243.98 0.12 

Other Expenditure 45.15 35.21 

Total 3,845.66 1,911.37 

Auditor's Fees and Expenses. 

Statutory Audit 8.25 8.25 

Tax Audit 1.10 1.10 

Other Services 1.60 0.68 

Total 10.95 10.03 

Note 33 Other Comprehensive Income 

Sr. No Particul For the Year ended For the Year ended 

“om aricutars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans (18.67) (3.80) 

Total (18.67) (3.80) 

B Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - - 

Total - - 

Note 34 Earnings per Equity Share 

Sr. No Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended 

— " March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Profit / (Loss) Attributable to Equity Shareholders 32,729.23 4,072.20 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 65,00,000 65,00,000 

Basic / Diluted EPS 503.53 62.65 

Note 35 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the extent not provided for) 

‘ As at As at 

alas Farticalas March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Contingent Liabilities 

Gurantees / Securities Given 9,000.00 9,000.00 

Total 9,000.00 9,000.00         
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Note 36 Related Party Disclosures 

As per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, the name of related party where control exists / able to exercise 

significant infulence along with the transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the 

management are as follows: 

A) Name of Related Parties alongwith relationship 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name Relationship 

Trust Capital Services (India) Pvt. Ltd. Holding Company 

Chanakaya Capital Partners Subsidiary Company 

Trust Assest Management Pvt Ltd Subsidiary Company 

Trust AMC Trustee Pvt Ltd Subsidiary Company 

Sankhya Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary Company 

Trust Financial Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

Abhigam Shares and Securities Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

Chanakya Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

Calculas Financial Consultants Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

Trust-Plutus Wealth Managers (India) Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

TrustPlutus Family Office and Investment Advisors (India) Pvt. Company under same Management 

Ltd. 
Trust Capital Holdings Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

Chanakya Wealth Creation Pvt. Ltd. Company under same Management 

Trust Securities Services Pvt Itd Company under same Management 

Chanakya Value Creation LLP. Firm under same Management 

Relativity Investment Advisors LLP Firm under same Management 

Nimit Tanna Key Managerial Person 

Nipa Sheth Director 

Nisha Mehta Director 

Utpal Sheth Relative of Director     
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B) Transactions with Related Parties are as under: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

paviieai For the year ended | For the year ended 

areenare March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Trust Capital Services (India) Private Limited 

Purchase of Bonds / Debentures 9,45,364.63 10,97,260.69 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 10,23,894.45 15,41,149.97 

Sale of Investment - 17,865.73 

Interest Received on NCD - 1,425.00 

Corporate Guarantee given - 9,000.00 

Trust Financial Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Brokerage paid 19.17 0.20 

Purchase of Bonds / Debentures 4,621.94 1,100.21 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 7,253.15 = 

Sankhya Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. . 

Purchase of Bonds / Debentures 34,215.41 27,218.43 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 15,903.58 96,845.25 

Purchase of Investment - 1,140.13 

Preference shares dividend 25.00 is 

Fees expenses 550.00 - 

Interest on NCD received 3.80 3.80 

Trust Securities Services Pvt ltd 

Purchase of Bonds / Debentures 110.42 - 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 10,574.00 - 

Trust Assest Management Pvt Ltd 

Investment in Equity shares 1,500.00 500.00 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 3,788.61 - 

Trust AMC Trustee Pvt Ltd 

Investment in Equity shares - 14.00 

'Trust-Plutus Wealth Managers (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

Investment in Equity shares 1,867.80 - 

Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 3,878.03 - 

Conversion of Preference share to Equity shares - 950.00 

Professional fees income 2.23 - 

Professional fees expense 546.09 86.66 

Brokerage/ Commission paid 0.11 123,65 

Chanakya Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Purchase of Bonds / Debentures 11,707.67 33,061.78 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 19,260.63 35,347.80 

PMS Fees income 8.32 1.19 

Chanakaya Capital Partners 

Dividend income 46,032.71 1,367.08 

Nipa Sheth 

Sale of Bonds / Debentures 10.10 - 

Professional fees income 1.73 1,39 

Nimit Tanna 

PMS Fees income 27.02 13.51 

Professional fees income 0.51 - 

Remuneration 692.71 222.81 

Utpal Sheth 

Professional fees income 2.59 2.08 

PMS Fees income 15.77 6.77 

Relativity Investment Advisors LLP 

Current account Contribution in LLP 249.60 - 

Share of Proit / (Loss) from LLP Investment (243.87) (0.12) 
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C) Related Parties balances: 

(Rs in lacs) 

  

Particulars 
As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2021 
  

  

Trust Capital Services (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Trade Receivable 6,253.24 4,264.42 

Share Capital issued & subscribed 649.00 649.00 
Corporate Guarantee given 9,000.00 9,000.00 

Sankhya Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Investment in Equity Shares 4,500.00 4,500.00 

Investment in Pref Shares 2,500.00 2,500.00 

Investment in Debentures 40.00 40.00 

Fees Payables 594.00 - 

Trust Assest Management Pvt Ltd 

Investment in Equity Shares 8,500.00 7,000.00 

Trust AMC Trustee Pvt Ltd 

Investment in Equity Shares 30.00 30.00 

Trust-Plutus Wealth Managers (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

Professional fees payable 28.12 102.68 

Investment in Equity Shares 3,017.80 1,150.00 

Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 3,878.03 : 

Trust Financial Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Margin money (receivable) 49.95 40.56 

Chanakya Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Trade Receivable 0.23 2,286.32 

Chanakaya Capital Partners 

Investment in Equity Shares 128.08 128.08 

Nimit Tanna 

PMS Fees Receivable 715 4,96 

Remuneration payable : 15.16 

Nipa Sheth 

Share Capital issued & subscribed 0.90 0.90 

Utpal Sheth 

PMS Fees Receivable 3.30 2.46 

Nisha Mehta 

Share Capital issued & subscribed 0.10 0.10 

Relativity Investment Advisors LLP 

Capital & Current Account with LLP 6.35 0.73 
        
  

* 0.00 reflects amount less than 1000 
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Note 37 PMS Fees is net of Expenses 2 320.21 lac (P.Y. % 123.54 lac) and Merchant Banking Fees is net of Expenses % 2556.43 lac (P.Y. 874.95 lac) 

Note 38 Amount of Rs. 1,673.12 lac appearing in Other Advances in Note No:-8 of Financial Statements of previous year indicate, amount wrongfully 

transferred to parties in earlier years. Such amount has been fully written off in current year. 

Note 39 Financial Risk Management 

Liquidity risk: 
Liquidity risk / funding risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that 

are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows. The company’s approach to 

managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed 

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses. 

Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises 

principally from the Company’s other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented in 

the financial statements. The Company's major classes of financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, investments measured at amortised cost and 

security deposits. 

The Company continuously monitors all financial assets subject to Expeted Credit Losses (ECL's). In order to determine whether an instrument is 

subject to 12 month ECL or life time ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the asset has become 

credit impaired since initial recognition. 

ECL is a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. It is measured as the present value of cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows 

due to the Company in accordance with contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

The Company has three types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss: 

- Cash and cash equivalent 

- Other receivables 

- Investment in debt securities measured at amortised cost 

Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective 

of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

(i) Interest rate risk: 

The Company is exposed to Interest risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 

interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest 

rates. 

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits with bank and investment in debt securities. Such instruments expose the 

Company to fair value interest rate risk. Management believes that the interest rate risk attached to this financial assets are not significant due to the 

nature of the financial assets held by Company. 

(ii) Market price risks 
The Company is exposed to market price risk, which arises from FVTPL investments. The management monitors the proportion of these investments in 

its investment portfolio. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by 

the appropriate authority. 

Note 40 Management of Capital 

The Company’s objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and 

commercial environment. The Company monitors its capital regularly, and hence, increase in capital is planned well in advance to ensure adequate 

funding for its growth. 

Note 41 Revenue from Contract with Customers 

  

For the Yearended | For the Year ended 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Type of Services 

Portfolio Management Services (net) 2,560.98 764,18 

Merchant Banking Services (net) 5,261.08 1,590.58 

Advisory Services 8.87 27.17 

Total 7,830.94 2,381.93 

Geographical Markets 

Within India 7,830.94 2,347.86 

Outside India - 34.07 
  

  

Timing of Revenue Recognition 

Services transferred at point in time 7,830.94 2,381.93 

Services transferred over time = z 

  

  

  

  

Contract Balances 

Service Asset = = 
Fees, Commission and other receivables 2,448.21 741.78 

  

  

  

          
  

Impairment allowance on Contract balances Ss = 
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Note 42 Leases 

A_ Implementation of IndAS 116 

Ettective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" using the cumulative catch-up approach. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up 

transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value 

of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied 

since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. 

Right Of Use asset has been included under the line ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and Lease Liability has been included under ‘Other Financial 

Liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet. 

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 10.00%. 

  

  

        
  

(i) Measurement of Lease Liabilities 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2022 31 March 2021 

Lease Liabilities relating to Operating Leases discounted 95.90) 50.44 

B The Company has entered into leasing arrangements for premises. Majority of the leases are cancellable by the Company. Right Of Use asset has been 

included under the line ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and Lease Liability has been included under ‘Other Financial Liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet. 

(i) Amounts recognized in balance sheet 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Right of use assets (net) (property, plant and equipment) 82.41 39.37 

Lease liabilities 
Current 95.90 45.06 

Non-current 5.38 

Total lease liabi 95.90 50.44 

Additions to the rights of use assets 100.27 22.36 

(ii) Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss 

Particulars For the Yearended | For the Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Interest Income on Security Deposits 2.60 2.66 

Depreciation charge for right of use assets 57,22 59.11 

Interest expenses (part of finance costs) 8.08 4.61 
Total 67.91 66.39 

Cash flows 

Particulars For the Yearended | For the Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Total cash outflow of leases 57.22 59.11 

(iv) Future commitments 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Future undiscounted lease payments to which leases is not yet 62.89 51.80 

commenced. 

(v) Maturity Analysis of undiscounted lease liabilities 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Less than 12 months 32.85 44.75 
1 year to 5 years 30.04 7.05 
More than 5 years = 

Total 62.89 51.80   
  

(vi) All the future cash flows to which the lessee is potentially exposed are reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities 

(vii) The Company currently does not have any sale and lease back transactions. 

C The Company does not have any finance leases
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Note 43 

a 

(i) Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 

(ii 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Gratuity 

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity 

(Rs in lacs) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Particulars pat neat 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Period 134.53 126.64 

Current Service Cost 19.24 19.49 

Interest Cost 7.38 7.20 

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions - = 

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 18.02 4.21 

Acquisition/ Business Combination/ Divestiture 9.41 (19.25) 

Actual Benefits Paid (18.78) (3.77) 

Past Service Cost - - 

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - - 

Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments - - 

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements - - 

Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period 169.81 134.53 

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Particulars red As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period 37.91 38.75 

Interest Income Plan Asset 2.46 2.52 

Actual Enterprise's Contributions - - 

Actual Plan Participants' Contributions - : 

Actual Benefits Paid (18.78) (3.77) 

Actuarial Gains/ (Losses) (0.66) 0.41 

Acquisition/ Business Combination/ Divestiture - - 

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - 7 

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements - - 

Fair Value of Plan Assets, End of Period 20.94 37.91 

Acturial return on plan assets 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Interest Income Plan Asset 2.46 2.52 

Actuarial Gains/ (Losses) on Plan Assets (0.66) 0.41 

Actual Return on Plan Assets 1.81 2.93 

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 

Particulars en As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 169.81 134.53 

Fair Value of Plan Assets 20.94. 37.91 

Funded Status - (Surplus) / Deficit 148.87 96.62 

Unrecognized Past Service Cost / (Credit) - - 

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 64(b) - - 

Liability / (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 148.87 96.62     
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year ended 

(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

(viii) 

31 March 2022 

Expenses recognized in profit or loss 

(Rs in lacs) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          
  

  

  

  

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Current Service Cost 19.24 19.49 

Interest Cost 7.38 7.20 

Expected Return on Plan Assets (2.46) (2.52) 

Past Service Cost 7 - 

(Gain)/ Loss due to Settlements/ - - 

Curtailments/ Acquisitions / Divestitures 
Total Expense/ (Income) included in "Employee Benefit Expense" 24.16 24.17 

Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Particul For the Year ended For the Year ended 

arrears March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of Period 8.81 5.01 

Remeasurements due to : 

Effect of Change in financial assumtptions [C] (3.60) - 

Effect of Change in demographic assumptions [D] - - 

Effect of experience adjustments [E] 21.61 4.21 

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses (C+ D +E) 18.02 4.21 

Return on plan assets (excluding interest) (0.66) 0.41 

Total remeasurements recognized in OCI 18.67 3.80 

Amount recognized in OCI, End of Period 27.48 8.81 

Current / Non-Current Benefit 

Particul As at As at 

omnes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Current Liability 20.89 - 

Non Current Liability 127.98 96.62 

Liability / (Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet 148.87 96.62 

Balance Sheet Reconciliation 

Particulars Asat Aga 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Opening Balance Sheet (Asset) / Liability 96.62 87.89 

Expenses / (Income) recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 24.16 24.17 

Expenses / (Income) recognised in OCI 18.67 3.80 

Contributions by the Employer - - 

Acquisition/ Business Combination/ Divestiture 9.41 (19.25) 

Net Liability / (Asset) recognized in Balance Sheet 148.87 96.62 

Investment Pattern 

Particul As at As at 

anemars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Others (including assets under Schemes of Ins.) 100.00% 100.00%       
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(x) Acturial Assumptions 

(Rs in lacs) 

  

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

As at 

March 31, 2021 
  

Financial Assumptions 
  

  

  

Expected return on plan assets 6.90% 6.50% 

Rate of discounting 6.90% 6.50% 

Rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00% 
  

Demographic Assumptions 
  

Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14) Ult. 
Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14) 
Ult. 

  

Withdrawal Rate 10.00% 10.00% 

  

Retirement Age 60 Years   60 Years 
  

Timing related Assumptions 
  

Time of Retirement Immediately on achieving normal retirement 

    Salary Increase frequency   Once a year 
  

(xi) Asset Liability Comparisons 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

Particulars ea eit 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

DBO 169.81 134.53 

Plan Assets 20.94 37.91 

(Surplus)/ Deficit 148.87 96.62 

Exp Adj - Plan Assets Gain/ (Loss) (0.66) 0.41 

Assumptions (Gain) / Loss (3.60) - 

Exp Adj - Plan Liabilities (Gains) / Loss 21.61 4.21 

Total Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 18.02 4.21 

(xii) Maturity analysis of the benefit payments 

Particulars aa As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of 
reporting 

1st following year 39.21 31.60 

2nd following year 18.48 13.42 

3rd following year 17.87 13.40 

4th following year 16.76 12.99 

5th following year 15.50 12.28 

Sum of years 6 to 10 62.39 49.82 

The weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation 8.50 8.45   
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(Rs in lacs) 

(xiii) Sensitivity Analysis 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

Particulars hm As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Impact of increase/ decrease in 50 bps on DBO 

Discount Rate 

162,91 130.89 
Increase “07% 270% 

. 171.71 138.38 

Decrease 1.12% 2.86% 

Salary Growth Rate 

ricyeaR 169.58 136.93 

-0.14% 1.78% 

165.42 132.57 
Decrease 250% 45%       
  

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of 

the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is 

unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been 

calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating 

the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

(xiii) Risks associated with Defined Benefit Plan 

(i) Interest Rate Risk 

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G-Sec rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A 

fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset. 

(ii) Salary Risk 
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in 

the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability. 

(iii) Investment Risk 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. 
Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in money market instruments and public deposits. 

(iv) Asset Liability Matching (ALM) Risk 

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. 

(v) Mortality Risk 

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and are payable till retirement age only, the plan does not have any 

longevity risk. 

(vi) Concentration Risk 

The plan has a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. 

Although probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines which mitigate risk. 

(xiv) During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. 

b Accumulated Compensated Absences 

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The 

Company recognised Rs. 52.01 Lakhs (Previous year : NIL) for Compensated Absences in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Note dd 
a
 

r) 

Tax expense 

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss 

(Rs in lacs) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      
    
  

        

Particulars For the Yearended | For the Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Current income tax 6,400.00 400.00 

Deferred tax (income) / expense 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 19.95 (244.86) 

Short/ (excess) provision of earlier years 639.40 : 

Income tax expense for the period 7,059.35 155.14 

Tax amounts recognized in other comprehensive income 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 4.70 0.96 
  

Reconcilliation of effective tax rate 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Profit / (loss) before tax 39,788.58 4,227.34 

Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 

Tax using company's domestic tax rate 10,013.99 1,063.94 

Tax effect on / of: 
Net expenses not deductable in determining taxable profit 1,663.06 213.25 

Effect of brought forward losses (as per IT act) - (828.85) 

Effect of Carry forward losses (as per IT act) 1,039.95 

Items taxed at different rates (6,361.26) (187.67) 

Ad hoc Provision / Short provision 44.26 139.34 

Income tax expense for the year] 6,400.00 400.00 

Effective Tax Rate 

Particulars For the Yearended | For the Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Effective Tax Rate (%) 25.17% 25.17% 
          
  

Note : The Company has elected to exercise the option of a lower tax rate provided under Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961, as 

introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Significant components and movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

‘ Balance as at April 01,] Expense / (Income) | Balance as at March 

Particulars 2021 , eas 31, 2022 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 

Investments 32.20 6.19 38.38 

Receivables 26.47 9.98 36.45 

Property plant and equipment and Intangible Assets (60.34) (11.67) (72.01) 

Others 48.69 (24.44) 24,24 

Net deferred tax assets / liabilities 47.02 (19.95) 27,07 

s Balance as at April 01,] Expense / (Income) | Balance as at March 

Particulars 2020 recognized 31, 2021 
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 

Investments (208.99) (241.19) 32.20 

Receivables 54.98 28.51 26.47 

Property plant and equipment and Intangible Assets (64.62) (4.28) (60.34) 

Others 20.80 (27.89) 48.69 

Net deferred tax assets / liabilities 20.80 (244.85) 47.02       
  

Note: 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the 

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. Significant management judgment is required in 

determining provision for income tax, deferred tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred tax assets. The recoverability of deferred tax assets is 

based on estimates of taxable income and the period over which deferred tax assets will be recovered. Any changes in future taxable income would impact 

the recoverability of deferred tax assets. 
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(Rs in lacs) 

Note 45 Financial instruments 

A Classification and fair values of financial assets & liabilities 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the tair value hierarchy. 

  

Carrying amount Fair Value 
  

Particulars Total carrying 
Fair Val Amortized cost ‘air Value mortize adimiount Level 2 Total 

  

As at March 31, 2022 
  

Financial assets 
  

  

  

  

  

  

Investments 141,003.62 22,600.26 163,603.88 141,003.62 141,003.62 

Receivables* 24,334.41 24,334.41 2 

Cash and cash equivalents* 273.41 273.41 # 

Bank Balances other than (a) above 161.44 161.44 

Other financial assets* 348.19 348.19 z 

Total 1,41,003.62 47,717.72 1,88,721.34 1,41,003.62 1,41,003.62 
  

  

Financial liabilities 
  

  

  

  

  

Debt Securities - 62,803.04 62,803.04 ~ 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - 50,723.50 50,723.50 z 

Payables* 1,906.50 1,906.50 - 

Other financial liabilities* 711.40 711.40 - 

Total - 1,16,144.44 1,16,144,44 - - 
  

  

As at March 31, 2021 
  

Financial assets 
  

  

  

  

  

  

Investments 61,807.15 15,348.82 77,155.97 61,807.15 61,807.15 

Receivables* 7,225.29 7,225.29 - 

Cash and cash equivalents* 758.31 758.31 - 

Bank Balances other than (a) above 26,22 26.22 - 

Other financial assets* 1,862.04 1,862.04 7 

Total 61,807.15 25,220.68 87,027.83 61,807.15 61,807.15 
  

  

Financial liabilities 
  

  

  

  

  

Debt Securities : 30,362.39 30,362.39 - 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) : 22,515.20 22,515.20 - 

Payables* : 138.39 138.39 - 

Other financial liabilities* : 902.96 902.96 - 

Total - 53,918.93 53,918.93 - - 
              
  

*Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade & other receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their 
carrying amounts largely due to current maturities of these instruments. Accordingly, fair value hierarchy for these financial instruments have not been presented above 

B Fair value heirarchy 

As per Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, the fair values of the financial assets or financial liabilities are defined as the price that would be received on sale 

of asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable. The hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and lowest priority to unobservable inputs. 

The hierarchy used is as follows : 
Level | — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived 

from prices). 
Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on 

assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

C Valuation techniques used to determine fair value 

Debt Securities - Market Value, and where market value is not available, discounted cash flow based on present value of the expected future economic benefit 

In order to assess Level 3 valuations as per Company's investment function, the management reviews the performance of the investee companies (including unlisted 

portfolio companies of venture capital funds and alternative investment funds) on a regular basis by tracking their latest available financial statements / financial 

information, valuation report of independent valuers, recent transaction results etc. which are considered in valuation process. 

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held regularly. 
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Note 46 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

    
  

  

  

      

As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

seu ssi Within 12 After 12 ma 
Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total Months Months Total 

Assets 
Financial assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 273.41 - 273.41 758.31 : 758.31 

Bank Balances other than (a) above 444 157.00. 161.44 1,22 25.00 26.22 

Receivables ze - = = = - 

Trade Receivables 24,334.41 2 24,334.41 7,225.29 = 7,225.29 

Investments 1,40,535.57 23,068.31 1,63,603.88, 61,807.15 15,348.82 77,155.97 

Other Financial Assets 135.18 213.02 348.20 1,862.04 : 1,862.04 

Sub-total financial assets 165,283.02 23,438.32 1,88,721.34 71,654.01 15,373.82 87,027.83 

Non-financial assets 

Current Tax Assets (Net) @ a = = = 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 27.07 27.07 - 47.01 47.01 

Investment Properties 1,476.39 1,476.39 = 1,476.39 1,476.39 

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,058.99 1,058.99 - 1,077.69 1,077.69 

Capital Work-In-Progress = é : * 7 - 

Other Intangible Assets - 12.78 12.78 16.31 16.31 

Other Non-Financial Assets 604.06 - 604.06 273.75 - 273.75 

Sub-total non-financial assets 604.06 2,575.23 3,179.28 273.75 2,617.40 2,891.16 

Total assets 1,65,887.08 26,013.55 1,91,900.63 71,927.76 17,991.22 89,918.98 

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Trade Payables 

total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises = - - i - - 

total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 1,906.50 - 1,906.50 138.39 - 138.39 

small enterprises 

Debt Securities 62,803.04 = 62,803.04 30,362.39 - 30,362.39 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 50,701.77 21.74 50,723.50 22,511.28 3.92 22,515.20 

Other Financial Liabilities 711,40 : 711.40 902.96 - 902.96 

Sub-total financial liabilities 1,16,122.70 21.74 1,16,144,44 53,915.01 3.92 53,918.93 

Non-financial liabilites 

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - - = - - : 

Provisions 5,168.73 148.87 5,317.60 i 96.62 96.62 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - - - - - 
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 2,548.93 - 2,548.93 729.02 - 729,02 

Sub-total non-financial liabilities) 7,717.66 148,87 7,866.53 729.02 96.62 825.64 

Total liabilities 1,23,840.36 170.61 1,24,010.97 54,644.03 100.54 54,744.57 

Note 47 Ratios 

Sr. Particulars 
No As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1 {Capital to risk-wieghted assets ratio (CRAR) 
> |Tier TCRAR Since, The Company is not registered with 

RBI as an NBFC. Hence, this ratios are not 
3 | Tier ICRAR applicable. 
4 |Liquidity Coverage Ratio       

   
   luni 

M. No. 1007087 ¢ 
fp 
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Note 48 Other Disclosures 

A Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company 

The Company holds all the immovable property including investment property in its own name as on March 31, 2022. 

B_ Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets 

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets during the period ended March 31, 2022. 

C Loans or Advances in the nature of loans 

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under 

Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person. 

D_ Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP) 

The Company does not have any Capital-Work-in-Progress. 

E __ Intangible assets under development 

The Company does not have any Intangible assets under development. 

F Details of Benami Property held 

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 

(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder. 

G Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 

The Company has not borrowed from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 

H Wilful Defaulter 

The Company has not been declared as Wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

I Relationship with Struck off Companies 

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

J Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 

As on March 31, 2022 no charge or satisfaction is pending to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

K Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of The Companies Act, 2013. 

L Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements 

The Company has not approved any scheme of arrangement in accordance with sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 

M_ Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 

A. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other 

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary 

shall: 

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or 

(2) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall 

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or 

(2) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

N_ Undisclosed Income 

The Company has not recorded any transactions in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period ended March 

31, 2022 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 
\ 

    

1. No. 10070 JE 
. O/ Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

~The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period ended March 31, 2022.
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Note 

Note 

Note 

(Rs in lacs) 

49 The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including India, resulting in significant volatility in financial markets and a 

significant decrease in global and India’s economic activities. The spread of the coronavirus and the situation of lock-down across India in the period 

during the year ended and post 31 March 2022 is considered as a significant event. There has been no material change in the controls or processes 

followed in the closing of these financial statements of the Company. 

The Company has assessed the impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets including the value of its investments as at 31 March 2022. Given 

the dynamic nature of the pandemic situation, the valuation of the Company's investment in debt securities as at March 31, 2022, is subject to significant 

uncertainty and will be affected by the severity and duration of the outbreak. In the event the impact is prolonged or more severe than anticipated, this 

will have a corresponding impact on the carrying value of the investments, The Company believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of 
known events arising out of COVID 19 pandemic in the preparation of financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing, 

50 Segment information 

The Company does not have any seperately reportable operating segment. The company is engaged in the business of providing financial services 

ranging from merchant banking, portfolio management services to trading in securities, forming part of sole segment of financial services. 

51 CSR Expenditure 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Corporate Social Responsibility with effect from 1 April 2014. As 

per the provisions of the said section, the Company has undertaken the following CSR initiatives during the financial year. 

a Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is INR 96.00 lac (Previous Year INR 106.00 lac) 

b Amount spent during the year ending 31st March 2022 on: 

During the year, the Company has spent Rs 7.90 lacs towards cost of Biochemistry Analyzer machine 

There are no related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure. 

The total unspent amount as on 31 March 2022 is Nil (P.Y. Rs. Nil) 

In previour year FY 2020-21, Company had spent excess CSR of Rs 150 Lacs (Rs 550 Lacs - Rs 400 Lacs). 

As per MCA circular dated 22nd January 2021, Excess CSR spent of Rs 150 Lacs is utilised in FY 2021-22 and balance CSR of Rs 61.90 Lacs (150 lacs + 7.90 

lacs - 96 lacs) will be carried forward. 
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